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VISION
To reduce non-performing loans in the banking sector to below 5%.

MISSION
We exist to acquire, manage, restructure and dispose Non Performing Loans of banks in Zimbabwe in 

order to realise maximum value for all Stakeholders. 

VALUES
Integrity

Innovation
Teamwork

Accountability
Decisiveness

VISION, 

MISSION STATEMENT 

AND VALUES
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Introduction 

The Zimbabwe Asset Management Corporation 

(ZAMCO) is a Special Purpose Vehicle, which was set up 

by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe in 2014. At the time of 

formation of ZAMCO, non-performing loans (NPLs) in the 

banking sector had risen to very high levels, with the NPL 

ratio peaking at 20.45% as at 30 September 2014. 

The high levels of NPLs constrained banks’ 

capacity to provide credit  to productive sectors of the 

economy, hence had the potential to limit the country’s 

economic growth. ZAMCO was formed with a man-

date of providing a workable solution to the problem 

of high non-performing loans in the banking sector 

through the acquisition, restructuring, management and 

disposal of non-performing loans. The aim of the NPL 

acquisitions being ultimately to clean up and 

strengthen the balance sheets of the banks and enable 

them to focus on their financial intermediation role and also 

assist debtor companies who were operating in a very

difficult environment.

It has been two years of ZAMCO’s operations and I 

am proud to say that ZAMCO has been successful in 

navigating the challenges of setting up structures 

and putting in place policies required to execute its 

mandate.  

We successfully implemented the setting up phase and 

are almost nearing the completion of the second phase, 

that is, the acquisition stage.

In June 2016, a team of three members from 

ZAMCO visited the Asset Management Corporation of 

Nigeria (AMCON). Established in 2010, AMCON is an 

organization that is similar to ZAMCO in terms of 

its mandate of acquiring NPLs from banks and 

resolving them. The purpose of the visit was to study and 

appreciate AMCON’s processes and systems as 

they have been in the business for quite some time. 

This study tour enabled ZAMCO to improve its own 

processes in a number of respects including loan 

acquisition and resolution processes. 

Progress to date

As at 31 December 2016, ZAMCO has acquired NPLs 
amounting to $811.42 million from various banks. 
At inception it was initially projected that NPLs of 

CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT  

Mr. Bartholomew Mswaka 
(Chairman of the Board)
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$500 million would be cleaned up from the market but 
various factors such as further downgrades of loans by 
banks and the economic downturn created more NPLs. 
From the beginning we were mindful that the figure of 
NPLs would always be a moving target and ZAMCO 
was prepared for acquisitions beyond the $500 million 
mark. 

NPLs in the banking sector have further 
reduced from 12.17% as at 31 December 2015 as 
reported in our 2015 annual report to 7.88% as at 31 
December 2016. Whilst the NPL ratio is still higher than 
the recommended 5%, it is a significant reduction 
from the 20.45% that prevailed at the time of ZAMCO’s 
formation in 2014. 

However, I must point out that acquisitions cannot 
and will not continue in perpetuity. We have set an 
acquisition deadline of 31 March 2017 lest we 
create moral hazard in the banking sector by 
continuing to provide an exit route for non-
performing debtors. Post-acquisition cut off, banks will 
be expected to resolve any new NPLs internally.

The Business Review section of this Annual 
Report gives more detail on the operations of the 
organisation for the year being reported on. It also 
gives insight on the final phase that ZAMCO will 
enter in the coming year, that of resolving and 
recovering all loans acquired by the Corporation. After 
ZAMCO has completed acquisitions, the remaining life 
of ZAMCO up to the sunset period will be spent resolving 
and recovering the acquired NPLs. The acquisition 
phase is crucial in cleaning up the balance sheets 
of banking institutions. The resolution and recovery 
phase is also important as ZAMCO’s success will be 
measured on how much of the acquired NPLs were 
recovered by the Corporation.

Financial Highlights 
The 2016 audit was conducted by Ernst & Young 
Chartered Accountants and I am proud to announce 
that the auditors issued an unqualified opinion. Key 
highlights from the audit include:-

- An operating profit of $2.493 million after 
 taking into account an impairment loss allowance of 

 $10 million;
- Operating expenses of $0.8 million. ZAMCO 
 continues to fund its own operational expenses 

from generated income.

Directorate
Unfortunately during the course of the year, Mr. Ritesh 
Anand resigned from the Board of Directors to pursue 
personal interests. On behalf of the other directors, I 
would like to thank him for his invaluable contribution 
to the board during his tenure and wish him well in his 
future endeavours. 

Mr. Anand will be replaced by Mrs. Vimbai Nyemba who 
brings a wealth of legal expertise to the board. I take 
this opportunity to formally welcome her to the ZAMCO 
Board.

Conclusion
ZAMCO is on course to achieving its mandate and has 
benefitted the banking sector by removing toxic assets 
and creating further capacity to lend. Further, some 
companies have benefitted from their loans being 
restructured by ZAMCO through extension of loan 
repayment periods and reduction of interest rates. This 
has allowed the companies opportunities for revival 
instead of closing down operations. ZAMCO’s 
toughest job is however yet to come, that of resolution 
and recovery. I am quite confident that the ZAMCO 
team will rise to the challenge.
 
Appreciation 
As a final note I would like to thank the Governor of 
the Reserve Bank of  Zimbabwe and my fellow board 
members for their continued support and dedication 
to the Corporation, the Chief Executive Officer and his 
staff for their hard work.

Bart Mswaka
Chairman

ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (PRIVATE)LIMITED
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ZAMCO has been fully operational for slightly more 
than two years. We are now in the second phase of our 
lifecycle, which is the acquisition phase and though we 
had initially anticipated to complete this phase by 31 
December 2016, it has become necessary to extend 
the date to 31 March 2017 to allow us to clear up any 
residual Non-Performing Loans from the banking 
sector. 

NPL Acquisitions
In our maiden Annual Report we reported that the 
Corporation adopted a phased NPL acquisition 
approach, with the first phase focusing on the largest 
loans across the banking sector. During the year under 
review the Corporation embarked on a second phase of 
acquisitions which focused on loans that were of lesser 
values but whose underlying businesses were viable. 

A review of the total NPLs in the banking sector 
conducted in September 2016 indicated that the NPL 
ratio was still well above the 5% target set by the 
Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe and it then approved 
a third phase of acquisitions by the Corporation 
focusing still on NPLs that are secured by mortgage 

bonds. 

The year 2016 represented a year of substantial 
progress for ZAMCO in terms of achieving its 
mandate of cleaning up the balance sheets of banks 
through taking over toxic assets. During the year 
ended 31 December 2016, ZAMCO acquired NPLs 
amounting to $457.93 million. These acquisitions 
brought the total acquired NPL portfolio to $811.42 
million as at 31 December 2016. Further acquisitions 
are set to stop in the first quarter of 2017 and after 
the conclusion of the third and final acquisition phase. 

Asset Management Companies such as ZAMCO are 
formed to resolve the ‘stock’ problem of NPLs i.e. the 
legacy NPLs that existed at the time of formation of 
an AMC. By the time ZAMCO stops NPL acquisitions, it 
would have dealt with the stock. Other measures such 
as establishment of a Credit Reference Bureau and 
improvement of Credit Risk Management systems by 
banks will address the ‘flow’ problem of NPLs i.e. new 
NPLs that will arise going forward.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 
STATEMENT

Dr. Cosmas Kanhai (CEO)

ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (PRIVATE)LIMITED
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Recruitment of Additional Staff 
As previously indicated in our maiden annual 
report of 2015, the Corporation is maintaining a lean 
organizational structure, with some services 
being outsourced from various service 
providers. To effectively discharge its mandate to
 various stakeholders and in recognition of the large 
loan book to be managed going forward, during the year 
under review the Corporation employed 3 
additional officers in Credit Department bringing the 
total staff complement employed by the Corporation 
to 16.

Outlook
We have commenced the third and final phase of 
acquisitions which we expect to complete in 
the first quarter of 2017. After completion of the 
acquisition, all efforts will be devoted around 
resolving non-performing loans: implementing 
recovery strategies, collection, and conversion of 
non-cash recovery assets into cash.  

When discussing the resolution of non-performing 
loans, it is opportune to consider a huge misconcep-
tion that has arisen. The misconception arises from the 
belief by some borrowers that once their NPLs are taken 
over by ZAMCO, they can now relax and do not need to 
repay their loans. The truth of the matter is that 
everyone is required to repay their loans. 
ZAMCO can only provide relief to those companies that 
demonstrate willingness and capacity to repay their 
loans. This relief is provided through reduction of 

interest rates and increasing the loan repayment 
period. For those companies that do not demonstrate 
willingness or ability to repay, ZAMCO will 
recover the loans through other means including sale 
of assets pledged as security. Furthermore, the Credit 
Reference Bereau (CRB) established by the Reserve 
Bank of Zimbabwe is now operational. Under the CRB, 
entities or individuals who have a bad history of not 
repaying their loans will be blacklisted and will not 
be able to access credit facilities from any financial 
institution in the country. This includes those borrowers 
who fail to repay their ZAMCO loans.

Appreciation
In closing I would therefore like to express my 
appreciation to the Governor of the Reserve Bank, the 
Chairman and his Board of directors and to the staff of 
ZAMCO for the excellent effort and commitment given 
in 2016. Because of your efforts, we have achieved a 
great deal in a short period of our existence.

Dr. Cosmas Kanhai
Chief Executive Officer 
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Report on 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Mr. Demitri Psillos Dr. Charity Lindile DhliwayoM  Norman Mataruka

Mr. Azvinandawa Saburi Mr. Sijabuliso Thabani Biyam Mr. Edwin Maxwell Zvandasara
 

Mr. Richard Godfrey Muirimi Mr. John Mafungei Chikura Mr. Ritesh Anand

  Mr. Bartholomew Mswaka (Chairman)

2016 
BOARD of

DIRECTORS  

Mr.

(Resigned May 2016)
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
1. The responsibility for the governance of the Corporation lies with the Board of Directors which is ultimately 
 accountable to the Shareholder. The Board  of  Directors,  retains  full  and  effective control  over  ZAMCO  and  the  

procedures  and business of the Board of Directors are regulated by a Board Charter which sets out the terms of 
reference of the Board. 

2. The Board has in turn delegated the day to day management of the Corporation to the Chief Executive Officer who 
executes the powers delegated to him without undue interference and in accordance with agreed guidelines. 

3. To  assist  with  the  effective  execution  of  their duties, the Board of Directors have access to the advice and 
services of the Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring compliance with procedures and regulations 
by the Corporation and the Board of Directors itself.  The  Directors  are  also  entitled  to  seek independent 

 professional advice on the affairs of ZAMCO,  at  ZAMCO’s  expense  if  they  believe that such course of action is 
in the best interest of ZAMCO.

4. The Board meets quarterly and additional meetings are convened as the need arises.
 
 Composition

5. The Board of directors consists of ten members drawn from various sectors and is chaired by an Independent 
non-executive director.  The Board composition is presented as follows:-

Name of Board Member    Status     Date of Appointment

Bartholomew Mswaka  Independent Non-Executive and Board Chairperson 15 July 2014

Dr. Charity Lindile Dhliwayo   Non-Executive    15 July 2014

Norman Mataruka    Non-Executive    15 July 2014

Azvinandaa Saburi    Non-Executive    15 July 2014

Edwin Maxwell Zvandasara   Non-Executive    4 February, 2015

Ritesh Anand**    Independent Non-Executive   26 August, 2014

Sijabuliso Thabani Biyam  Independent Non-Executive   15 July 2014

Demitri Psillos    Independent Non-Executive   15 July 2014

Richard Godfrey Muirimi   Independent Non-Executive   15 July 2014

John Mafungei Chikura   Independent Non-Executive   4 February, 2015

Note:     ** resigned in May 2016

Attendance At Board And Board Committee Meetings
6. The Table below shows the frequency of meetings of the Board of Directors and Board Committees, as well as 

members’ attendance for the financial year ended December 31, 2016.
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ZAMCO COMMITTEES
Credit, Investment & Debt Restructuring 
Committee

7. The Committee is made up of the following 
 members:

• Mr. R.G. Muirimi - Chairperson
• Mr. J. Psillos
• Mr. S.T. Biyam
• Mr. N. Mataruka
• Mr. A. Saburi
• Mr. B. Mswaka

8. The major responsibilities of the Committee are:
• directs the formulation of policies that govern the 

acquisition of non-performing loans from banking 
institutions and ensures that these policies are 

 followed,
• deliberates and approves or declines all NPL 
 acquisition proposals.
•  reviews and assesses the Corporation’s credit risk 

including loan management processes.
• Establishes guidelines to meet various applicable 

regulatory rules and statutes pertaining to credit 
risk, as outlined in the Banking Act (Chapter 24:20) 
and Bank Regulations 2000. 

• Controls the portfolio of non-performing assets 
held by the Corporation.

• Ensures that adequate procedures are in place 
for dealing with possible viable NPLs that are 

 restructured and managed in line with the 
 Corporation’s policies and procedures.
• Provide oversight on NPL resolution strategies.

9. In 2016, the committee met four times. The 
 principal activities of the Credit, Investment & Debt 

Restructuring Committee during the year under 
 review were:-
a) Assessing credit proposals on NPL acquisitions 

from various banks in the country and approving 
NPLs for acquisition.

b) Reviewing and considering credit reports, 
 investments reports, and restructuring proposals 

for the acquired NPLs.
c) Assessing and reviewing update reports on 
 resolved NPLs under evaluation, Resolved NPLs, 
 and reports on investments of funds.
d) Ensuring that the system in place in the 
 acquisition, management and administration of 

NPLs is effective, efficient and appropriate. 

10. As ZAMCO moves closes on further NPL 
 acquisitions in the third and final phase, it is 
 expected that much of the activity of the 

Board Member  Board Credit Investments & Debt Audit Committee    Human Resources Committee
    Restructuring Committee 

Bartholomew Mwaka 5    4     2

Dr. Charity Dhliwayo 5      3 

Norman Mataruka 4    2     2

Azvinandaa Saburi 4    4     2

Edwin Zvandasara 5      3 

Ritesh Anand**    

Sijabuliso T. Biyam 4    4  

Demitri J. Psillos 4    4  

Richard G. Muirimi 4    4  

John Chikura  5      3 

Total Number of 5    4  3   2

Meetings held

Note:  ** resigned in May 2016
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 Committee in 2017 will be focused on NPL 
 resolution, business rescue proposals, investor 
 liaison and investments proposal approvals for the 

acquired NPLs. 

11. The committee understands that its decisions in 
the final phase will have an impact on recovery of 
companies and hence employment preservation 
and creation. All decisions will be driven by the de-
sire to ensure that ZAMCO recovers the maximum 
possible value from the acquired NPLs.

 Audit Committee
12. The Committee is composed of  the following 

members:

• Mr. J.M. Chikura - Chairman
• Mr. E.M. Zvandasara
• Dr. C.L. Dhliwayo
• Mr. S.T. Biyam

13. The Committee is responsible for, amongst other 
things, ascertaining whether the accounting and 
reporting policies of ZAMCO are in accordance 
with the legal requirements and agreed ethical 

 practices, reviewing the scope and planning of 
audit requirements, reviewing the findings on 
management matters as reported by the external 
auditors and departmental responses thereon, 

 reviewing the effectiveness of ZAMCO’s 
 system of accounting and internal control, making 
 recommendations to the Board in regards to the 

appointment, removal and remuneration of the 
 external auditor and authorizing the internal 
 auditor to carry out investigations into any 
 activities of ZAMCO which may be of interest or 

concern to the Committee.

14. The Committee also reviews ZAMCO’s 
 annual and interim financial statements, including 
 reviewing the effectiveness of ZAMCO’s disclosure, 
 controls and systems of internal control, the 
 integrity of ZAMCO’s financial reporting and the 
 independence and objectivity of the external 
 auditors. The Committee also provides oversight 

on the management of risks, including foster-
ing a sound internal control environment in the 

 organisation.

15. The Principal activities of the Committee during 
the year under review were as follows:

a) Financial Reporting - Reviewed the Annual 
 report and financial statements for 2015 before 
 submission to the board;
b) External Audit - The Committee reviewed the 
 external audit plan in advance of the audit and met 

with the external auditor to review the findings 
from his audit of the financial statements. 

c) Internal Audit - The Committee discussed and 
agreed the annual internal audit plan with the 

 internal auditor. The Committee received reports 
from the internal auditor. The Committee also 

 ensured coordination between the internal and 
 external auditors. 

 Human Resources Committee

16. The Committee is made up of the following 
 members:

• Mr. B. Mswaka (Chairman)
• Mr. A. Saburi
• Mr. N. Mataruka

17. The Committee is responsible for ensuring 
 effective human resources policies and strategies, 
 overseeing the Corporation’s recruitment process, 

periodically reviewing salaries and incentives for 
staff in order to attract and retain the services of key 
employees, reviewing employment agreements and 
severance agreements and the competitiveness 
of the Corporation’s remuneration policies. The 
Committee also oversees the Corporation’s plans 
for management succession and development, 

 reviews and where significant, reports to the Board 
on best practices, trends, new technologies and 
current emerging public policy issues in HR matters. 

18. During the year 2016, the Committee reviewed the 
organizational structure of the Corporation and 
approved recruitment of personnel to fill vacant 
posts. The Committee will continue to review the 
appropriateness of the organizational structure as 
the Corporation’s scope of activities evolves over 
time.
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20. The functions of the key departments are shown in 
the table below:

Credit & Operations
 
 The department is responsible for:
• Loan acquisition and loan management;
• Review of portfolio of NPLs offered by banks for 

sale.
• Collating all loan data for each debtor across all 

banks in order to provide ZAMCO with a complete 
record for each debtor prior to acquisition.

• Conduct carve-out of loan portfolio including 
 stratification, segmentation, pooling and 
 packaging the NPLs.
• Perform NPL data cleansing exercise and prepa-

ration of Level 1 information used to prepare 
 expression of interests (EOIs).
• Preparing and maintaining the data room (Level 2 

Information)
• Collect and maintain aggregate loan and 
 underlying security valuations on a borrower by 

borrower basis.
• Conduct credit analysis and classify the acquired 

loan portfolio into viable and non-viable loans.
• Maintaining and updating debtors’ loan records, 

processing receipts from debtors and transferring 
cash received to the concerned AMCs/IAs and 

 reporting all transactions to the AMCs.
• Devise and document loan strategies  including  

 ZAMCO ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

19. The key departments in the Corporation are Credit & Operations, Investments & Asset Management, Legal and 
Secretariat, and Finance, Administration & Support Services. The organizational structure is indicated in the 

 diagram below:

CEO

PA/ Secretary Internal Auditor

Head - Credit &
Operations

Head - Legal &
Company 
Secretarial

Head - Investment &
Asset Management

Credit
Administration

Officer

Recoveries
Officers

Head - Finance,
Administration &
Support Services

ICT
Manager

HR
Manager

Office
Administrator

Accountant

Receptionist

Messenger/Driver
Accounts
Officers

Risk Manager

Legal Officers Investments 
Officers

Property
Investment

Officer

______
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restructuring and enforcement of facilities.
• Oversee the development and execution of 
 individual loan plans.
• Identify assets for disposal, coordinate the prepa-

ration of asset information/sale documentation 
and facilitate the sale process.

• Evaluation of proposals and business plans of 
companies earmarked for restructuring and 

 making recommendations to ZAMCO board.

Investment & Asset Management
 
 It is the department’s function to:
• Oversee the appointment firms for outsourced 
 services such as property valuation, fund raising, 

and loan portfolio management.
• Supervise the conduct of property valuation by 

independent professional valuers. This involves 
reviewing the valuations to ensure that adequate 
valuation procedures have been followed and that 
the values determined are reasonable, among 

 other issues.
• Conduct of due diligence to establish the prices 

ZAMCO will pay for acquisition of loans.
• Secure access to institutional investors, private 
 investors and other prospective asset purchasers.
• Management of ZAMCO’s foreclosed property 

portfolio.
• Developing asset management and disposal 
 strategies on the acquired loans. The strategies 

include sale of loans to investors, restructuring of 
obligors, and sale of collateral.

• Deal structuring and reviewing of proposals from 
investors or asset managers/investment advisors.

• Management of the NPL sale process including 
preparing information packages and bid docu-
ments, facilitating sale negotiations, carrying out 
bids and auctions for NPLs, and deal completion.

 
 

Legal & Secretariat 

• Management of legal, tax, reputational and 
 regulatory risk.
• Management of the legal process for the 
 acquisition of bank assets by ZAMCO to include 

oversight of the legal due diligence process and 
management of outsourced legal services.

• Management of ZAMCO litigation.
• Management of the procurement of key services 

and contractual relationships with key service 
 providers.
• Optimisation of the taxation treatment of ZAMCO 

activities.
• Provision of advice on foreclosure processes and 

disposal of assets.
• Management of ZAMCO legal documentation.

 

Finance, Administration & Support 
Services
 
• Maintenance of General Ledger
• Preparation of Management & Year-end Accounts
• Payroll administration
• Management of cash resources
• Internal control systems development, 
 implementation and monitoring
• Procurement process management
• Management of the audit process
• Responsible for statutory compliance 
• Budget preparation, monitoring and control
• General office administration.
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      BUSINESS REVIEW
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SETTING UP
July 2014- March 2015

Formed the Company
Established Policies and Procedures

Appointed Board of Directors
Appointed skeletal staff to spearhead the set up process

ACQUISITION
April 2015- March 2017

Appointed additional Staff, Conducted Asset quality 
Reviews of offered NPLs, Conducted Legal Due Diligence on NPLs

Conducted collateral Assessment and Valuation, Declined/Approved NPL 
Acquisitions, Acquired Approved NPLs and gave Banks TBs as Payment Consideration, 

Will stop NPL Acquisitions in March 2017

RESOLUTION
April 2017- Sunset Period

Conduct credit assessment of each NPL: Categorise Loans into Viable and Non-viable
Establish resolution/recovery strategies for each NPL: Implement recovery strategies

Refine recovery strategies over time: Pay periodic coupons

Road Map for ZAMCO

1. The operating life cycle of an asset management 
company (AMC) such as ZAMCO encompasses 
three phases: Set Up, Acquisition and Resolution 
and Recovery phases. The Set Up phase which 

 involved establishment of the Corporation and 
putting in place policies and procedures was 

 completed in the first quarter of 2015. Since then 
and up to today, ZAMCO is in the Acquisition 
phase, which involves disposal by banks of NPLs 
to the Corporation.  The acquisition process is 
critical in cleaning up the balance sheets of banks 
so that they are able to focus on their financial 

 intermediation role, which is important for 
 economic growth.

  NPL Portfolio
2. Throughout the year, the Corporation has been 

predominantly occupied with the acquisition of 
 eligible NPLs from banking institutions. As at 

31 December 2016, ZAMCO’s total portfolio of 
 acquired NPLs amounted to $811.42 million 
 involving 764 loan accounts. 
3. The above portfolio of NPLs were acquired from a 

number of banks that are shown in the table below:

 Participating Banks                    Participating Banks

1 Agribank          9 IDBZ

2 NMB        10 Stanchart

3 BancABC         11 Steward 

4 CABS        12 Metbank

5 Stanbic        13 Tetrad

6 CBZ        14 Interfin

7 Ecobank   15 Trust 

8 FBC   16 AfrAsia

4. As at 31 December 2016, ZAMCO had not acquired 
any NPLs from Barclays Bank, POSB and MBCA. 
The disposal of NPLs to ZAMCO is conducted on 
a willing-buyer-willing-seller basis, so banks are 
not compelled to sell their NPLs to ZAMCO. In this 
regard, banks could opt to utilize their internal NPL 
resolution mechanisms on some of their NPLs as 
opposed to selling them to ZAMCO.  

    Portfolio Distribution
5. The sectoral distribution of the acquired non-per-

forming loan portfolio is shown in the diagram 
 below:
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6. The majority of the acquired loans were in the 
 agricultural sector which constituted 44% of 

the portfolio, followed by manufacturing which 
 comprised 13% of the acquired NPLs. 

 Collateral for the Acquired NPL Portfolio
7. As we have been advising since formation of the 

Corporation, ZAMCO focuses on acquiring NPLs 
that are secured by mortgage bonds i.e. real 

 estate properties. As at 31 December 2016, 
 ZAMCO held 509  properties as collateral on the loan 
 portfolio. The property types varied from residential, 
 commercial, industrial, agricultural and land banks.
 The diagram below shows the distribution of 
 properties. Residential properties constitutes the 

biggest proportion of properties contributing 68%

 

 Funding For NPLs
8. ZAMCOs acquisition of NPLs is mainly funded by 

Government which is the norm the world over for 
all national or public asset management compa-
nies. The acquisitions were mostly funded using 
TBs, which constituted 67% of the funding. The 
TBs used were long dated, with tenors ranging 
from 12 to 15 years.

9. The portfolio of acquired loans of $811.42 million 
as at 31 December 2016 was funded as shown in 

the table below:

Funding Source     Amount ($’ Million)    Percentage
TBs    547.93   67%
Private Funding  263.49   33%
Total   811.42               100%
 
Impact of NPL Acquisitions
10. At the time of establishment of the Corporation, 

NPLs in the banking sector had peaked at a level 
of 20.14% as at 31 December 2014. The diagram 

 below shows the trend in the NPL ratio for the 
banking sector since 2009:

11. The NPL acquisitions that have been made 
by ZAMCO have contributed to the decline in 
the level of NPLs in the banking sector, which 

 decreased to 7.88% as at 31 December 2016. 
The ratio is expected to decrease further after the 

 conclusion of the take-over process of NPLs which 
were under evaluation as at 31 December 2016.

12. Individual banks have also immensely benefited 
from disposing their NPLs to ZAMCO. The perfor-
mance of banks in terms of capitalization levels, 
liquidity and profitability have been boosted.

13. A number of underlying borrowers (companies) 
have started benefiting or experiencing huge 

 relief as a result of restructuring of their NPLs. 
When these loans were at banking institutions, 
the loans were short term with tenures of up to 3 
years. Interest rates were also very high, reaching 
up to 35% per annum. For these companies, the 
Corporation extended loan repayment periods up 
to 8 years and reduced interest rates to between 
6% and 10%. These measures have resulted in 
the companies experiencing significant cash flow 
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savings through reduction of finance charges. The 
cash flow savings are then channeled towards 

 operations, providing the companies opportuni-
ties to return to viability. In this regard, ZAMCO has 

 assisted in the preservation and creation of 
 employment in the country through resuscitation 

of distressed companies.

Stopping NPL Acquisitions
14. The Corporation expects to complete the 
 Acquisition phase during the first quarter of 2017. 
 Putting a stop to acquisitions is standard prac-

tice as AMCs such as ZAMCO are formed to deal 
with legacy NPLs i.e. the stock problem of NPLs. 
Once the stock problem is resolved, banks should 
be able to use their own internal NPL resolution 
methods for new NPLs that arise. Stopping ac-
quisitions is also meant to prevent the moral haz-
ard problem whereby banks would lower their 

 underwriting standards hoping that they can 
 always sell the loans when they become non-
 performing.

15. Furthermore, halting acquisitions removes 
 double focus on the part of ZAMCO as resourc-

es will be channeled towards resolution, which is 
the final stage in the life of an asset management 
company. In other words this will allow for more 
concerted efforts on NPL resolution and recovery 
for the remaining part of ZAMCO’s existence.

Lessons Learnt/Challenges in the Acquisition Stage
16. Some of the lessons that we have drawn and 
 challenges faced in the acquisition stage include 

the following:

a) Misconception by borrowers on the operations 
of ZAMCO - One of the major challenges that 

 ZAMCO has faced is the belief by some 
 borrowers that once their NPLs are taken over by 

ZAMCO, they can relax now and do not need to 
 repay their loans. Everyone is required to 
 repay their loans. ZAMCO can only provide 
 relief to those debtors that demonstrate 
 willingness and capacity to repay their loans. 

This relief is provided through reduction of 
 interest rates and increasing the loan repayment 

period. For those debtors who do not demon-
strate willingness or ability to repay, ZAMCO will 
recover the loans through other means includ-
ing sale of assets pledged as security. This is the 

 reason why we only take over loans secured by 
mortgage bonds so that the collateral provides the 
exit route for non-viable NPLs.

b) Failure to provide working capital - The 
 other challenge that we face is inability of 
 ZAMCO to provide working capital to companies. 

At the moment, ZAMCO does not have funding to 
provide to companies. A number of companies 
whose debts are being restructured require addi-
tional funding for them to turnaround. In order to 
address this challenge, proposals have been made 
by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe to establish a 
Resuscitation Fund that will be used to provide 
funding to companies whose NPLs were acquired 
by ZAMCO that that have bright prospects for 

 turnaround.
c) Inadequate provisioning - Some banks did not set 

aside adequate provisions to absorb loan losses. 
As a result, they were not able to absorb discounts 
offered by ZAMCO on their NPLs.

d) Under-reporting of NPLs by some Banks - Anoth-
er key observation was the prevalence of under-

 reporting of NPLs by some Banks. Some loans 
which were initially classified as performing by 
banks ended up being disposed to ZAMCO.

e) Challenging macro-environment - The current 
difficult macro-economic environment poses the 
threat of creation of high levels of new NPLs. 

f) Medium of payment for NPLs - The long dated 
tenor of TBs has resulted in some banks being 

 unwilling to dispose their NPLs to ZAMCO.

17. Despite the above challenges, ZAMCO has 
 contributed immensely to the reduction of NPLs 

in the banking sector, thereby achieving one of 
its mandate of cleaning the balance sheet of 
banks. Most banking institutions have healthier 

 balance sheets, having disposed their toxic assets 
 to ZAMCO. This is evidenced by profits posted by
  some of these banks for the year ended 31 
 December 2016.
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20. Non-viable loans are loans where the borrowers 
do not have commitment and/or capacity to repay 
the loans from business or other cash flows. This 
also includes loans of borrowers who would have 
failed to comply with ZAMCO’s loan restructuring 
principles and guidelines. Each of the non-viable 
NPLs will be reviewed to determine the resolution 
strategy. The options that are available to resolve 
non-viable NPLs is are to recover the debt through 
the sale of the underlying collateral of an NPL or 
sale of the borrower’s business.

21. This classification will enable development of the 
most appropriate resolution strategy for each and 
every NPL. ZAMCO’s resolution policies provide 
for a number of resolution options that can be 

 implemented that are shown in the table below:

22. The implementation of the various recovery 
 strategies generates recovery assets into four 

main categories:
a) Cash – Foreclosure:  generated from foreclo-

sure- sale of collateral i.e. shares and properties. 

Method Description Recovery Assets

Plain Loan 
restructuring

Extending the loan repayment period, reducing interest rates and granting 
capital repayment holidays. This reduces the financing cost burden, 
allowing companies an opportunity to turnaround.

Cash 
Restructured loans*

Debt to equity 
conversion

Converting the debts into either preference or ordinary shares. This cleans 
balance sheets of companies making them more attractive 

Cash; Securities

Debt/asset swap
Agreement with debtor to extinguish debt or part debt using assets 
acceptable to ZAMCO.

Property; Securities

Negotiated 
settlement

Agreement with debtor for final settlement often at an acceptable discount 
to face value of debt.

Cash,Property, Securities

Schemes of 
Arrangement

Voluntary schemes formulated by both borrowers and creditors, aiming 
to restructure the loans.

Cash; Restructured Loans
Securities; Properties

NPL Disposal Sale of NPLs to investors in distressed assets Cash

Foreclosure Forced sale of collateral to settle debt. Cash

Others
Include partial resolution of companies, liquidations, appointment of 
managers. 

Property; Securities; Cash

* Where an NPL has been restructured i.e. the borrower agrees to a new repayment schedule that is being adhered to, in effect the restructured loan 

is a recovery asset (being a stream of repayments over a period of time).

 Resolution and Recovery Phase
18. Once NPL acquisitions are concluded, the next and final phase is the Resolution and Recovery phase that is 
 devoted to implementing various strategies to resolve the acquired NPLs. 

 The first step post-acquisition is to undertake a detailed review of every NPL. This will culminate in the acquired 
NPLs being classified into two broad categories i.e. viable loans and non-viable loans. 

19. Viable NPLs are those where borrowers are making required repayments to ZAMCO or have shown commitment 
to make repayments. Viable loans are placed under loan restructuring which allows the borrowers to restruc-
ture and rehabilitate their loans in accordance with ZAMCO’s loan restructuring principles and guidelines. This is 
also beneficial to ZAMCO as loan restructuring generally results in higher recovery rates vis-á-vis other recovery 

 methods. The Corporation employs four principal methods of loan restructuring –Plain Loan Restructuring, 
 Settlement of Loans, Schemes of Arrangement and Debt to Equity Conversion. Details of these methods are 
 provided in the table below.
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Non-foreclosure: generated from cash settlements, redemption of collateral, the sale of securities.
b) Restructured loans - made up of restructured or rehabilitated NPLs i.e. a stream of repayments over a period of 

time.
c) Securities - comprising all kinds of securities e.g., shares or loan stocks that have been issued to ZAMCO as part 

of settlement schemes. 
d) Properties - comprising properties that are offered and accepted as full or partial settlement for NPLs.

23. Ultimately, all non-cash assets will need to be converted to cash. The cash received will be used to pay coupons 
and retire TBs used to acquire non-performing loans.

 
Performance Measurement in the Resolution Stage
24. The pace of NPL resolution is important in determining the success of an Asset Management Company (AMC) 

such as ZAMCO.

25. According to the Financial Stability Institute (2004) public AMCs like ZAMCO should aim for speedy resolution of 
their acquired assets. Thus, the resolution pace of NPLs under the control of the AMC and the recovery amount 
from such resolution represent two key performance indicators of the AMC.

26. To gauge its performance (i.e. the pace or progress of resolution) ZAMCO will, going forward, employ 
 performance measures shown in the table below:

Indicator            What it Measures
1. The ratio of cumulative assets resolved to total                   Measures what proportion of NPLs have been dealt with
 assets acquired (book value).                                    rather than parked in a warehouse awaiting resolution.

2. Cumulative recovery in both cash and non-cash.       Measures asset recovery performance on a broad basis.
 assets

3. Cumulative recovery in cash only.                                    Measures asset recovery performance on a narrow 

Cash 

Issue Treasury Bills

Acquire NPLs

Implement Recovery/Resolutions Startegies

Non- Cash Assets

Disposal of non-cash assets

Cash

Pay Coupons
and Redeem 

TBS
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1.3 The Corporation has a Risk Management 
 Function that co-ordinates the risk response and is 
 the custodian for the Corporation’s risk manage-

ment policy, which clearly defines ZAMCO’s overall 
 policy in handling the significant risks identified 

and the strategies to manage these risks. 

1.4 Line functions are responsible for 
 establishing and implementing risk and 
 control systems for their areas of responsibilities. 
 The risk management system is at two levels 

namely strategic and operational. 
- At the strategic level this involves the identification 

and analysis of principal risks by Management as 
part of the business planning and review process. 

- At the operational level, the Risk Management 
Function is responsible for conducting the 

 independent risk reviews of the loan management 
papers, asset management papers and investment 
proposal papers before submission for approval by 
the relevant Management and/or Board Commit-
tees.

1.5 The Risk Management Function is required 
to conduct these reviews in an effective and 

 efficient manner to provide reasonable independent 
 assurance that significant and pertinent risk issues 

have been appropriately addressed in the relevant 
 proposal papers. Thus, this forms part of an 
 ongoing process of managing risks. 

1.6 Principal areas of risks are subject to reporting by 
Management and review by the Audit Committee 
and the Board. Some of the principal risks and their 
measurement and management methodologies 
are highlighted hereunder.

2. CREDIT /RECOVERY RISK

2.1 One of the core mandates of the Corporation is 
to maximize the recovery from the acquired NPL 
portfolio hence credit risk management is of 

 paramount importance. Some of the techniques 
that are bring utilized in measuring and managing 

 credit risk are highlighted in the table below:

1. OVERVIEW

1.1 The Corporation has put in place a risk management framework for identifying, evaluating, reviewing and 
 addressing the principal risks that ZAMCO faces. The identified risks are continuously monitored and appropriate 

risk migratory measures are adopted in order to safeguard the Corporation’s assets. 

1.2 The risk management framework can be summarized as follows:

§	Know areas of 
vulnerability (credit, 
operational, etc).

§	Carry out full portfolio 
evaluation based on 
identified risks.

§	Document risk issues.

§	Put appropriate 
methodologies to 
measure risk exposure.

§	Ensure pricing integrity 
and independent 
verification.

§	Quality control and data 
integrity.

§	Set a strategy for the 
management of specific 
risks.

§	Engage risk expertise 
in decision-making 
processes.

§	Implement policies to 
cover key risks and 
ensure adherence.

§	Define control 
framework.

§	Dedicate resources to 
deal with key risk issues.

§	On-going evaluation and 
review.

§	Implement a risk governance 
function, which can be stand-
alone or combined within existing 
management structures.

§	Use key risk indicators to aid 
monitoring and reporting.

§	Issue escalation protocol.

 1. Risk Identification  2.. Risk Evaluation    3. Risk Mitigation     4. Risk Governance And   
                Reporting
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OPERATIONAL RISK

Nature of Risk Measurement Management Tools

1. Failure to meet 

interest and capital 

repayment obligations 

on restructured loan 

facilities in accordance 

with the terms of the 

facility agreement.

2. Failure to meet 

dividend payments on 

preference shares.

- Loan grading into five 

classification categories: 

pass, special mention, 

substandard, doubtful and 

loss.

- Classification of loan book 

into performing and non-

performing loans.

- Recovery rate on total 

acquired NPL portfolio

- Proportion of NPLs failing 

to meet restructured facility 

terms.

- Sectoral Concentration of 

portfolio.

- Pre-acquisition credit assessment.

- Focus on acquiring loans secured by mortgage 

bonds.

- Reducing interest rates and extending tenor of 

loans.

- The corporation’s focus on acquiring and 

restructuring loans for obligors with viability 

prospects will enhance the quality of the loan book.

- Instituting measures to influence turnaround of 

companies such as requiring board seats and 

management re-organization.

- Engaging corporate turnaround experts to advise on 

corporate restructuring

- On-going monitoring of performance of the 

companies.

- Monthly management Risk Review reports and 

quarterly reporting to board.
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3. OPERATIONAL RISK

3.1 Operational risk arises from failed or inadequate 
 internal processes, people and systems or from 
 external events that cause harm to the organization.

3.2 Key to the management of operational risks 
is maintenance of robust internal controls. 

 ZAMCO’S internal control system is based 
on a clear definition of responsibility and 

 delegation of authority to a number of Board 
 Committees. The roles and responsibilities for 

these committees are defined in their terms of 

 references. The terms of reference are periodically 
reviewed to reflect the relevancy and practice. 

3.3 There are requisite policies and procedures for 
 almost all the business and support activities. There 

is also an ongoing review to update the existing 
policies and procedures to reflect current practices. 

3.4 Controls for specific activities and areas are as 
 follows:

Operations There is a structured and well-defined line of approving authorities for all loan restructuring proposals, 
which are subject to independent risk reviews. Guidelines exist for loan restructuring and loan recovery. 
There is regular reporting and review of loan restructuring and other business activities by senior 
management. The Corporation uses Key Risk Indicators (KRIs) and self-risk assessment to measure 
and manage operational risks.

Performance of 
Service Providers

A system to pre-qualify service providers onto ZAMCO’s panel and monitoring their performance and 
quality of service.

Loan Restructuring 
Failures

There is a post-approval implementation system to monitor and report on the progress of loan recovery 
and defaults. This is to ensure that agreed loan workouts are implemented promptly and defaults detected 
early for appropriate actions to be taken. Management conducts regular reviews of default accounts

Information and 
Communication 
technology.

The Corporation has implemented robust management information systems to ensure easy transaction 
processing and safeguard data integrity.  The Corporation has an acceptable disaster recovery plan 
incorporating a disaster recovery site

Finance and 
Accounting

A comprehensive budgeting process with an annual plan approved by the Board. The business results 
are reported monthly and compared to the plan. Forecasts are prepared annually and reviewed regularly 
throughout the year. The Corporation announces its business results through its published Annual 
Report.

Performance 
Measurement The organization sets annual objectives. Divisions also set their divisional objectives, which are aligned, 

to the Corporation’s objectives. Where appropriate, individuals are allowed to set their objectives, which 
are aligned, to the divisional objectives. Work activities are supervised and the performance is monitored 
and evaluated i.e. actual results against the agreed targets/objectives.

Employee Conduct Employees conduct their work activities in accordance with clearly defined approved policies and 
procedures that meet international standards as defined in the various policy and procedures manuals. 
This includes the Code of Ethics policy document that sets high ethical business standards and practices 
for business conduct and the code of behavior for employees to adhere to. 

Assurance Through the Audit and Risk Committee, the Board has oversight role in ensuring a sound internal control 
system and regular review on its adequacy and integrity is conducted. Internal auditors and external 
auditors conduct independent appraisals  on ZAMCO’s business operations and support activities and 
financial records and statements respectively to provide an opinion on the adequacy and integrity of 
ZAMCO’s overall internal control framework.
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LEGAL AND COMPLIANCE RISK

4. LEGAL AND COMPLIANCE RISK

4.1 Some of the legal and compliance risk issues and measurement and management methodologies are highlighted 
 below:

Legal & Compliance Risk Issues Measurement/Mitigation

Defective and/or inadequate 
documentation for transactions/
contracts entered into by ZAMCO 
leading to litigations.

- Maintain system of continuous review and updating of documentation used 
by the Corporation.

- An internal legal team is in place to advise on legal matters.
- In appropriate circumstances, reliance will be placed on formal legal 

opinions from external counsel.
- Continuous enhancement in NPL acquisition processes. 

Non-compliance with laws, 
legislation and regulations

- Proactively identifying new and changed relevant local laws, regulations and 
standards.

- Regular reporting to stakeholders, particularly RBZ and Ministry of Finance.

- Compliance with best practice requirements.

Non-compliance with own policies 
and procedures

- The Corporation’s Legal and Compliance function is mandated to monitor 
compliance to policies and procedures. 

- The board and senior management monitors compliance on an on-going 
basis.

- Independent assurance from audit.
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5. LIQUIDITY RISK

5.1 ZAMCO has an obligation to meet periodic 
 coupons on Treasury Bills (TBs) that have been 

used as consideration in the acquisition of NPLs 
as well as redemption of the TBs upon maturity. 
Liquidity risk arises when the Corporation fails to 
provide funding to meet these obligations.

5.2 This risk arises from the following factors among 
others:

a) The assets of the Corporation (NPLs) bear very 
high credit risk such that expected periodic 

 repayments may not materialize;
b) ZAMCO sometimes grants repayment 
 holidays upon restructuring of loans to give 
 borrowers breathing space and offer opportunities 

for turnaround. As a result there will be a mismatch 
between cash inflows and cash outflows;

c) Some resolution methods such as debt/asset 
swaps do not result in immediate realization of 
cash; and

d) Full recovery on all the NPLs acquired is not 

 expected given the high risk nature of the loan 
portfolio.

5.3 Liquidity risk for the Corporation results primar-
ily from credit risk in that if borrowers do not 

 repay their loans, ZAMCO will not have sufficient 
 resources to meet its obligations on TBs.  
 Therefore, the concerted efforts that the Corporation 

is putting towards resolution and recovery will also 
assist in managing liquidity risk for the Corporation.

5.4 The repayments that are being made by borrowers 
are allocated to two sinking funds i.e. TB Redemp-
tion Sinking Fund and TB Coupon sinking fund. 
Funds held in the TB Coupon Sinking Fund are being 
used to pay for the half-year coupon obligations. 
The funds in the TB Sinking Fund will be used to 

 redeem the TBs when they mature at the end of 
their tenors. The TBs used to acquire NPLs have 

 tenors ranging from 12 to 15 years. The TB 
 Redemption Sinking Fund is growing over time as 

ZAMCO resolves and recovers from the acquired 
NPLs. 

 LIQUIDITY RISK
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6. REAL ESTATE RISKS

6.1 ZAMCO’s focus has been acquiring loans that are 
secured by mortgage bonds. Outstanding loans, in 
the event of default, may be settled by foreclosing 
on properties held as security. In addition debt-as-
set swap arrangements may be entered into with 
borrowers. It is anticipated that the foreclosures 
and debt/asset swap arrangements will result in 
ZAMCO holding a portfolio of properties.

6.2 The Corporation has a section in the 
 Investments and Asset Management department 

that is dedicated to property investments. The 
property investments section is responsible for, 
among, others:

a) Property Valuations.
b) Property development appraisals.
c) Lease and Property management.
d) Property sales and Marketing.
e) Market research and property consultation.

6.3 In order to manage the risks associated with 
 having beneficial ownership of a property portfolio, 

ZAMCO has employed specially skilled in-house 
personnel to manage the real estate portfolio. 
The property portfolio is managed in an integrat-
ed approach with the objective of driving property 
strategy through defining an acquisition  strategy, 
cost structure, investment plan, disposal criteria, 
and maintenance plan for the portfolio as a whole.

REAL ESTATE RISKS
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1  Introduction
1.1 The financial statements of the corporation in-

clude the Statement of Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of 
Changes in Shareholders Equity, Statement of 
Cash Flows and the accompanying notes. The 
following discussion should be read together with 
the accompanying audited financial statements of 
the corporation for year ended 31 December 2016, 
which contain details of factors that influenced the 
recorded results.

2  Statement of Comprehensive Income

2.1 ZAMCO made an operating profit of US2.5 million 
after impairment loss allowances for the period to 
31 December 2016. 

2.2 The overall operating performance for the period is 
set out in the table below:

 Table 1: Key elements of income and expense

               US$000
 Interest and commission income             36,541

 Interest and commission expense           (23,145)

 Net interest and commission income            13,396

 Operating expenses                 (758)

 Impairment loss allowance           (10,145)

	 Operating	profit	 	 	 												2,493

 

  Interest and commission income
2.3 The interest and commission income recognized 

in 2016 is broken down as follows:

 Table 2: Interest income 

              US$000
 Interest received from loans and receivables             30,949

 Coupon Income                 5,309

 Facility Fees      272

 Other Income        11

 Net interest and commission income            36,541

2.4 Interest income from the acquired loans and 
 receivables constitute the largest part of 
 recognised income. The interest is calculated on 

a monthly/quarterly compounding basis with 
 applicable rates ranging between 6 and 10% per 
 annum. Note 3 to the financial statements 
 provides further guidance on the computation of 

interest income.

2.5 Coupon income is recognised on acquired 
 assets which were restructured into 
 cumulative preference shares. Coupon rates 

range from 6-10% per annum. Facility fees are 
 recognised when a loan acquired is restructured 

to new rates and/or tenure. These are chargeable 
at 1% of facility value and recognised on a time 

 apportionment basis over the life span of the facility.

    Interest expense
2.6 Interest expense for the year 2016 was US$23.

1million, broken down as follows:
 Table 3: Interest expense 
              US$000
 Interest on Government Treasury Bills            19,372

 Interest expense on PTA Facility              3,750

 Other Interest/Commission charges                   23

 Net interest and commission income           23,145

 FINANCIAL REVIEW
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2.7 The interest expense includes US$19.4 million 
 accrued on Government Treasury bills. The 

bills in issue at period end amounted to US$450 
 million and attract a coupon of 5% p.a. payable 
 semi-annually. 

2.8 US$3.8million of the interest expense arose from 
advances from the PTA Bank. These advances 
amounted to US$43 million as at period end and 
attract an interest rate of 8.25% payable quarterly 
and semi-annually.

   Operating expenses
2.9 The operating costs incurred by the corporation in 

2016 amounted to US$0.8 million, the distribution 
of which is as shown below:

 Table 4: Operating expenses
           US$000
 Auditors’ remuneration   38
 Depreciation    30
 Utilities     15
 Legal fees        -
 Rates     20
 Employee benefits                424
 Directors fees    97
 Other expenses                134
 Total operating expenses               758

 Impairment
2.10 At year end, in accordance with the International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), an assess-
ment was carried out on all the assets held by 
the corporation with a view to establishing if any 
had deteriorated in value to less than the carrying 
value in the books (impairment).An impairment 

 allowance of $10.1 million was at year end. 

3 Cash Flow Statement

3.1 ZAMCO generated net cash of US$5.5 million, 
which mainly arose from operations. Transactions 
which affected the cash position mostly were pay-
ments by clients in accordance with the terms of 
the restructured facilities. 

4 Statement of Financial Position

        Loans and advances
4.1 At year end, ZAMCO had eligible assets with a 
 carrying amount of US$699 million. There were 

significant acquisitions during the period under 
 review that were added to the opening carrying 

value of $272 million.

4.2 The assets are held in various industries 
 covering resources, services and manufacturing. 

The assets valuation was arrived at after taking 
into account impairment factors observable for the 
individual and groups of assets.

  Preference Shares 
4.3 Preference shares with a value of $40 million were 

held as at year end. These are restructured facilities 
which pay quarterly and semi-annual coupons. They 
are held in manufacturing and resources entities

        Treasury Bills
4.4 The treasury bills are government paper issued for 

the raising of financing. These treasury bills were 
used to purchase the loans acquired during the 

 period. The treasury bills outstanding, as at year 
end, amounted to US$450 million, attracting an 

 interest of 5% p.a payable bi-annually. 

        Loans and Borrowings
4.5 Funding on some of the assets acquired was provided 

by external funders. PTA Bank extended facilities to 
ZAMCO which stood at US$43 million at period end. 
The rates chargeable on these facilities are 8.25%.

5 Going Concern

5.1 The management of the corporation assessed the 
entity and its operations, as at year end, for any 
issues that may affect its ability to continue as a 
going concern. The opinion of management is that 
ZAMCO has the capacity to continue operating as 
a going concern for the foreseeable future. Further 
information is on this issue is covered under Note 
27 to the financial statements.
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 The Directors of the Zimbabwe 

 Asset Management Corporation 

have pleasure in submitting their 

report for the financial year ended 

31 December 2016.

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS 

1.1  The Zimbabwe Asset Management Corporation 
(“ZAMCO”, “the corporation”, “the entity”) was 

 established in 2014 as a private entity. 
 
 The functions of ZAMCO are as follows:
a) To acquire, manage, restructure and dispose of 

Non-Performing Loans in the Banking Sector
b) Realisation of maximum value for all stakeholders 

through engagement; 
c) Reduction of non-performing loans in the banking 

sector

2. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 The Directors are responsible for the preparation 
and integrity of financial statements that present 
the state of affairs of ZAMCO as at 31 Decem-
ber 2016. These include statements of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income, financial 

 position, cash flows and changes in equity for the 
 year then ended and information contained in this 

report.

 In order to meet the above requirements, the 
 Directors are responsible for maintaining 
 adequate accounting records and internal 
 controls to safeguard the assets of ZAMCO and 

to prevent and detect fraudulent activities. The 
internal control systems are implemented and 
monitored by suitably trained personnel with 

 appropriate segregation of authority and 
 duties. Nothing has come to the attention of the 
 Directors to indicate that any material breakdown 

in the functioning of these controls, procedures and 
systems has occurred during the year under review.

 The financial statements of the corporation 
are prepared in accordance with International 

 Financial Reporting Standards. Accordingly, 
these financial statements have been prepared in 

 accordance with the basis of preparation on ‘note 
2’ and the accounting policies, as determined by 
the Directors, as set out in ‘note 3’ to the financial 

 statements. The Directors consider the accounting 
policies adopted to be suitable for the intended users 
of the financial statements. The financial statements 
are prepared under the historical cost convention.

 The accounting policies are prepared on the 
 basis of International Financial Reporting 
 Standards (IFRS).

 The audited financial statements are presented in 
United States dollars. These were audited by our 
independent auditors, Ernst & Young, who were 
given unrestricted access to all the accounting 

 records and supporting documentation.

ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (Pvt) Ltd
DIRECTORS’ REPORT  
For the year ended 31 December 2016
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SN NAME   DESIGNATION         STATUS
1 Mr. B. Mswaka - Board Chairperson        Independent Non-  

   - Chairperson – HR Committee       Executive Director
    - Committee Member : Credit Committee   
2 Dr. C.L. Dhliwayo - Committee Member : Audit Committee      Non-Executive Director
3 Mr. A. Saburi  - Committee Member : HR & Credit and Debt Restructuring Committees   Non-Executive Director
4 Mr. N. Mataruka - Committee Member : HR & Credit and Debt Restructuring Committees   Non-Executive Director
5 Mr.E.M. Zvandasara - Committee Member : Audit Committee      Non-Executive Director
6 Mr. R. Anand  -  Chairperson – Credit and Debt Restructuring Committee    Independent Non-Executive 

                 Director
- Resigned w.e.f  31 May 2016
7 Mr. D. Psillos  - Committee Member : Credit Committee      Independent Non-Executive  

             Director
8 Mr. S.T. Biyam - Committee Member: Audit & Credit and Debt Restructuring Committees   Independent Non-Executive  

              Director
9 Mr. R.G. Muirimi - Committee Member : Credit Committee      Independent Non-Executive  

             Director
10 Mr. J.M. Chikura - Chairperson – Audit Committee       Independent Non-Executive  

             Director

3. BOARD MEMBERS AND COMMITTEES

 The following is the composition of the ZAMCO Board of Directors, as well as the various board committees. The 
Board is made up of non-executive directors only.

The following were the Audit, Risk and Oversight Committee members for the entity.

• Mr. J. Chikura  (Chairperson)
• Dr. C.L Dhliwayo 
• Mr. E. Zvandasara 
• Mr. S. T. Biyam 

 The Audit, Risk and Oversight Committee committee met regularly with ZAMCO’s external auditors and senior 
management to review accounting, auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters. The external audi-
tors have unrestricted access to the Audit, Risk and Oversight Committee.

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 The accounting policies adopted by ZAMCO are set out in note 3 to the financial statements. 

5. RESULTS OF ZAMCO’S OPERATIONS 
 The corporation recorded a profit for the year of US$2,493,381 (2015 Profit: US$478,788). The profit was as a 

result of normal ZAMCO operations during the period under review. 

ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (Pvt) Ltd
DIRECTORS’ REPORT  
For the year ended 31 December 2016
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                                                            2016                    2015
                                                                                                                                              US$        US$
  
    					Profit	for	the	year	 																																			 	 	 	 													2,493,381												 478,788
                                                                                                                                _____________    ______________

6.  GOING CONCERN 

 The financial statements have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies, supported by reasonable and 
prudential judgments and estimates. ZAMCO recorded a profit of US$2,493,381	(2015	profit:	US$478,788), for the 
year ended 31 December 2016 and as of that date, its total assets were US$784,655,214 (2015: US$352,148,224) 
whilst total liabilities, amounted to US$781,459,038(2015:	US$351,445,429), as reflected in these financial 

 statements. 

 The Government through the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe (RBZ) has committed to the operations of ZAMCO by 
pledging to issue Treasury Bills (TBs) with a face value of US$500 million for the purchase of Non-Performing 
Loans. ZAMCO has utilised US$450 million of the Treasury Bills allocation as at reporting date.

 ZAMCO is wholly owned by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe and remains core to the wellbeing of the financial 
services sector. The entity generates revenue from interest on purchased and restructured loan assets, facilitation 
and management fees. 

 Accordingly, taking into account ZAMCO’s performance in the period under review, and future prospects 
 presented by the scope of ZAMCO’s mandate, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that ZAMCO has 
 adequate resources to continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future.

7.  APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 The financial statements which appear on pages 10 to 52 were approved by the Directors on 11 April 2017 and the 
Directors authorised the following officials to sign the financial statements: 

Mr. B. Mswaka      Dr.C.Kanhai  
Chairman of the Board     Chief Executive Officer

__________________________    
Mr. W. Madera
Company Secretary

ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (Pvt) Ltd
DIRECTORS’ REPORT  
For the year ended 31 December 2016
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Tel: +263 4 750905-14 or 750979-83
Fax: +263 4 750707 / 773842

Email: admin@zw.ey.com
www.ey.com

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of 
Zimbabwe Asset Management Corporation (Private) 
Limited, “ZAMCO” set out on pages 39 to 67, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 
December 2016, and the statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows 
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. In our opinion, the financial 
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the company as at 31 December 
2016, and its financial performance and cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards. 

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the company in accordance with 
the International Ethics Board for Accountants’ Code 
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) 
and other independence requirements applicable to 

performing audits of financial statements in 
Zimbabwe. We have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our pro-
fessional judgement, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. 

For each matter below, our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that context. 
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report, including in relation 
to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the 
performance of procedures designed to respond to our 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements. The results of our audit pro-
cedures, including the procedures performed to ad-
dress the matters below, provide the basis for our audit 
opinion on the accompanying financial statements. 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Shareholders of Zimbabwe Asset Management Corporation (Private) Limited

Ernst & Young
Chartered Accountants (Zimbabwe)
Registered Public Auditors
Angwa City
Cnr Julius Nyerere Way/
Kwame Nkrumah Avenue
P O Box 62 or 702
Harare
Zimbabwe   
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Other information
Other information consists of the information 
included in the Annual Report, other than the 
financial statements and our auditors report thereon. 
The directors are responsible for the other information. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express an audit 
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work we have performed on the other information 
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial 
Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 
(Chapter 24:03), and for such internal control as the 
directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the directors 
are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, 
or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

Recoverability/Impairment of Non-performing loans

The core business of the company is to acquire 
nonperforming loans from local banks. These loans make 
up ninety eight percentage of the company’s total assets. 
The major risk relating to the non- performing loans is credit 
risk which is largely influenced by the nature of the loans. 

As disclosed in note 4.4, ZAMCO reviews the carrying 
amount of its loans and advances against estimations of 
the recoverable amount. In reviewing the estimates of the 
recoverable amounts, management is guided by the planned 
resolution methods, the value of security on hand and the 
extent to which agreed payment plans are being adhered to.

The allocation of the resolution method and the valuation 
of the security available is determined by management.The 
extent of significant judgements made by management over 
a very significant part of the statement of financial position 
makes this a Key Audit Matter requiring significant auditor 
attention. 

Our procedures to included, amongst others: 

*     Review of the company’s policy relating to the provision for 
credit losses;

*     Review of management’s assessment of the classification 
of the loans based on their respective planned resolution 
methods;

*     Inspection of evidence of the borrowers’ rates of adherence 
to the performance levels required by the respective 
resolution method, including;

o Evidence of security held;
o Valuation of security on hand
o Trading performance updates for the underlying companies.
o Adherence to agreed payment plans
*     Review of post year end events supporting the recoverability                 
of the loans.
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material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we 
exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material 
 misstatement of the  financial statements, 
 whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
 procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
 evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
 material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 

than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
 collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
 misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control 
 relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
 procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
 effectiveness of the company’s internal control. 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
 policies used and the reasonableness of 
 accounting estimates and related disclosures made 

by the directors. 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ 

use of the going concern basis of accounting and 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

 conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

 evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
 report. However, future events or conditions may 
 cause the company to cease to continue as a going 

concern. 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 

content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
 regarding the financial information of the 

 entities or business activities within the 
 company to express an opinion on the financial 

statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
 supervision and performance of the company audit. 

We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with the directors regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide the directors with a statement that 
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the direc-
tors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In our opinion, the company’s financial statements, 
have in all material respects, been properly prepared 
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of and 
in the manner required by the Companies Act (Chapter 
24:03).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this 
independent auditor’s report is Mr. David Marange 
(PAAB Number 0436 )

Ernst & Young
Chartered Accountants (Zimbabwe)
Registered Public Auditors
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These financial statements were prepared by the finance department of Zimbabwe Asset Management Corporation, 
under the direction and supervision of the Head – Finance and Administration, Tatenda Muzariri (PAAB Number 
04011).

ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (Pvt)Ltd 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2016
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ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (Pvt)Ltd 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2016

     
                   2016                 2015
      Notes               US$               US$
  
Interest and commission income  5.1   36,540,811     5,201,592
Interest and commission expense  5.2                 (23,144,974)     (4,264,187)
             __________________      __________________
Net interest and commission income     13,395,837                      937,405
   
Operating costs     5.3      (757,582)                     (458,617)
             __________________      __________________
Profit for the year before reversal of 
impairment of financial   assets                 12,638,255          478,788

Impairment of financial assets   6               (10,144,874)   -
             __________________      __________________
Profit for the year           2,493,381          478,788    
  
Other comprehensive income (OCI)      -     -
                     ________________        ________________
Total	comprehensive	income	for	the	year	 												 	 	 		2,493,381	 			 						478,788
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ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (Pvt)Ltd 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
For the year ended 31 December 2016

                   2016             2015
      Notes              US$               US$
Assets   
   
Cash and Bank Balances   7    6,826,515     1,332,860
Receivables     8          31,389             1,936
Loans and Advances    9              699,255,659               272,372,437
Preference Shares Held    10   40,092,561                 40,092,561
Financial Securities    11   38,283,003                 38,283,003
Property and Equipment    12                      166,088                        65,427
                          _________________     __________________
Total Assets                   784,655,214               352,148,224
                                                                                                            __________________              __________________
Equity and Liabilities  
 
Capital and reserves 
Share Capital     13            1,000                          1,000
Share premium     13                                    286,521                      286,521 
Retained Earnings    14                                2,908,655                      415,274
                                                                                              _________________      _________________
Profit	attributable	to	equity	owners	of	ZAMCO	 	 																														3,196,176	 																				702,795
                                                                                                            _________________                _________________
Liabilities 

Loans and borrowings    15               328,686,751   98,911,200 
Treasury bills in issue    16              449,748,736              250,123,365
Deferred income    17     2,611,876     2,028,120
Payables     18        411,675             382,744
            _________________      _________________
Total liabilities                   781,459,038              351,445,429
            _________________        __________________
Total equity and liabilities                 784,655,214              352,148,224

                        

             
Mr. B. Mswaka        Dr.C.Kanhai  
Chairman of the Board       Chief Executive Officer

__________________________    
Mr. W. Madera
Company Secretary
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ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (Pvt)Ltd 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2016

   
                      
        Share       Share     Accumulated
	 	 	 	 	 	Capital														premium						Profit/(Loss)																					Total	 	
                                                                 US$                     US$                      US$          US$ 
       
Balance at 1 January 2015               1,000    89,488  (63,514)    26,974 
Share Premium                                  -  197,033                           -                 197,033
Profit for the year                          -                 -  478,788                 478,788 
        ______________    ______________      ______________    _______________    
Balance at 31 December 2015           1,000  286,521  415,274                 702,795 
  
Profit for the year                  -             -             2,493,381               2,493,381        
 
                                                 ______________    ______________      ______________    _______________ 
Balance	at	31	December	2016					 				1,000																286,521											2,908,655													3,196,176
                                                               ______________    ______________      ______________    _______________  
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ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (Pvt)Ltd 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2016

 
            NOTES              2016               2015
                  US$       US$
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  
Operating cash flows
 Profit for the year                                                                           2,493,381             478,788
Adjustment for items not affecting cash flows
-Depreciation                                                                                                               29,614               14,222
-Receipts from insurance                (1,098)                          -
-Loss on disposal of property                 1,013                          -
                                                                                                                                _______________         _______________
Net	cash	inflow	from	operating	activities																								 	 	 				2,522,910	 												493,010
                                                                                                                                                                                                
Decrease in other receivables                                                                       16,727,773                         3,664
Decrease in trade payables                                                                        (13,626,838)           2,410,864
                  _______________          ______________
Cash	Generated	from	Operations																																																											 				5,623,845	 									2,907,538
                  _______________          ______________
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  
Investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of PPE                  1,098                         -
Purchase of property and equipment            (131,288)              (58,275)
Acquisition of portfolio investments                 (421,628,431)    (350,748,001)
                  _______________          ______________
Net cash from investing activities                                                                    (421,758,621)         (350,806,276)
                                                                         _______________          ______________
 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital                        -             197,033
Proceeds from long term borrowings                   421,628,431      349,034,565
                                _______________          ______________
Net	cash	from	financing	activities	 	 	 	 														421,628,431	 					349,231,598
                  _______________          ______________

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS                                5,493,655          1,332,860
 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year       1,332,860            -
                  _______________         ______________
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year          7     6,826,515          1,332,860
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ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (Pvt)Ltd 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2016

1.   REPORTING ENTITY  

 The Zimbabwe Asset Management Corporation is 
an entity incorporated under the Companies Act 
[Chapter 24:03]. It is incorporated and domiciled in 
Zimbabwe. ZAMCO’s registered office is 5th Floor, 
Hardwicke House, 72-74 Samora Machel Avenue, 
Harare. 

  
1.1. Nature of business 
 The Zimbabwe Asset Management Corporation 

(“ZAMCO”) is established under the Companies 
Act [Chapter 24:03] (“the Act”).  The functions of 
ZAMCO are as follows: 

  
d) To acquire, manage, restructure and dispose of 

Non-Performing Loans in the Banking Sector
e) Realisation of maximum value for all stakeholders 

through engagement; 
f) Reduction of non-performing loans in the banking 

sector

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 
  
 The financial statements of ZAMCO are 
 prepared and presented in accordance with the 

International Financial Reporting Standards as 
 issued by the International Accounting Standards 

Board. The financial statements are prepared 
under the historical cost basis except for land, 

 buildings, and available for sale financial 
 instruments which that are measured at fair 
 value.  
  
2.1 Financial Reporting Framework
 ZAMCO presents its statement of financial 
 position in order of liquidity. The accounting 
 policies are prepared on the basis of International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

2.2  Use of estimates and judgments 
 The preparation of the financial statements 
 requires management to make judgments, 

 estimates and assumptions that affect the 
 application of accounting policies and the reported 

amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expens-
es. The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on historical experience and various 
other factors that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances, the results of which form 
the basis of making the judgments about carrying 
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates. 

 
 Estimates and underlying assumptions are 
 reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
 accounting estimates are recognised in the year 

in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
 affects only that year or in the year of revision and 

future years if the revision affects both current and 
future years. Management judgment was used in 
the application of accounting policies that have a 
significant effect on the financial statements and 
on estimates with a significant risk of material 

 adjustments in the subsequent year.
 
 Information about significant areas of estimation, 

uncertainty and critical judgments in applying 
 accounting policies that have the most significant 
 effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 
 statements are described in note 4, to the financial 

statements. 
 
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 

POLICIES 

3.1 Revenue recognition 
 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is 

probable that the economic benefits will flow 
to ZAMCO and the revenue can be reliably 

 measured, regardless of when the payment is 
 being made. Revenue is measured at the fair 
 value of the consideration received or receivable, 

taking into account contractually defined terms.

3.1.1 Interest income
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 Interest income arises from ZAMCO’s lending and 
money market activities.  It is accrued on a time 
proportion basis, by reference to the principal 

 outstanding and at the interest rate applicable to 
the instrument. 

3.1.2 Fee income
 ZAMCO recognises fees on an accrual basis from 

loan restructuring services in accordance with the 
substance of the underlying transaction.

3.1.3  Dividend income
 Dividend income from investments is recognised 

when ZAMCO’s rights to receive the dividend have 
been established. 

  

3.2  Foreign currency translation 
 Items included in the financial statements of the 

entity are measured using the currency of the 
 primary economic environment in which the 
 entity operates (‘the functional currency’). These 
 financial statements are expressed in United 

States Dollars (US$). 

 Transactions and balances
 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
 foreign currencies are translated at the func-

tional currency spot rate of exchange at the 
 reporting date. All differences arising on settlement or 
 translation of monetary items are taken to the 

statement of profit or loss. 

 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms 
of historical cost in a foreign currency are trans-
lated using the exchange rates as at the dates 
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items 
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the date 
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss 
arising on translation of non-monetary items is 
treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss 
on change in fair value of the item (i.e. transla-
tion differences on items whose fair value gain 

or loss is recognized in other comprehensive in-
come or the statement of profit or loss is also 
recognized in other comprehensive income or 
the statement of profit or loss, respectively).

 Transactions in foreign currencies are initially 
 recorded by the entity at their respective functional 

currency spot rates at the date the transaction first 
qualifies for recognition.

3.3 Employee benefits

3.3.1 Retirement benefit costs
 ZAMCO does not contribute to any retirement 
 benefit plans.

3.3.2 Pension scheme  
 ZAMCO and its employees contribute to the 
 National Social Security’s Pension Scheme from 

pensionable earnings. The fund is a defined 
 contribution fund, the assets of which are held in a 

separate trustee administered fund.
  
3.3.3  Termination benefits   
 Termination benefits are recognised as an 
 expense when ZAMCO is committed, without 
 realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal 
 detailed plan to terminate employment 
 before the normal retirement date, or to provide 
 termination benefits as a result of an offer made to 
 encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination 

benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognised 
as an expense if ZAMCO has made an offer 

 encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable 
that the offer will be accepted, and the number of 
acceptances can be estimated reliably. 

  
3.3.4 Short term benefits  
 Short term benefits consist of salaries, 
 accumulated leave payments and any non-
 monetary benefits such as medical aid 
 contributions. Short-term employee benefit 
 obligations are measured on an undiscounted 
 basis and are expensed as the related service is 

ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (Pvt)Ltd 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2016
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provided.   
 A liability is recognised for the amount expected to 

be paid under accumulated leave if ZAMCO has a 
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this 
amount as a result of past service provided by the 
employee and the obligation can be estimated 

 reliably. 
  
3.4 Taxation 
 ZAMCO is exempt from Income Tax and 
 Capital Gains Tax in terms of the Income Tax Act              

(Chapter 23:06) and the Capital Gains Tax Act 
(Chapter 23:01). 

3.5 Property and equipment 
 Land and buildings held for use in the provision and 

supply of services, or for administrative purposes, 
are initially measured at cost and subsequent-
ly stated in the statement of financial position at 
their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the 
reporting date, determined from market-based 
evidence by appraisal undertaken by indepen-
dent professional valuers, less any subsequent 

 accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
 accumulated impairment losses.  

 Revaluations are performed with sufficient regu-
larity such that the carrying amount does not differ 
materially from the fair value determined at the re-
porting date. Property and equipment are revalued 
after three years in accordance with the Audit, Risk 
and Oversight Committee guidelines. Any revalu-
ation increase arising on the revaluation of build-
ings is credited to the revaluation reserve, except 
to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease 
for the same assets previously recognised as an 
expense, in which case the increase is credited to 
profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previ-
ously charged.  

  
 A decrease in carrying amount is charged as an 

expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, 
if any, held in revaluation reserve relating to a 

 previous revaluation of that asset. 
 Depreciation on revalued buildings is charged to 

profit or loss.  On the subsequent sale or retirement 
of a revalued property, the attributable revaluation 
surplus remaining in the properties revaluation 
reserve is transferred directly to the accumulated 
fund. 

  
 Furniture, equipment and motor vehicles are 
 stated at acquisition cost less accumulated 
 depreciation and impairment losses.  

 Depreciation is charged so as to write off the 
 acquisition cost or valuation of assets, other than 

land and buildings under construction, over their 
estimated useful lives to their residual values, 

 using the straight line method, on the following 
 basis: 
  

Buildings      50 Years
Computer Equipment     4 Years
Computer Software   4 Years
Office Equipment   4 Years
Furniture and Fittings                  10 Years
Motor vehicles       5 Years

  
 The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retire-

ment of an asset is determined as the difference 
between the sales proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and is recognised as income 
or expense in profit or loss. 

3.6. Financial instruments 
 All financial assets and liabilities are initially 
 recognised on the trade date i.e., the date ZAM-

CO becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. The classification of financial 

 instruments at initial recognition depends 
on their purpose and characteristics and the 

 management’s intention in acquiring them. ZAMCO’s 
 financial instruments consist primarily of cash and 

deposits with banks, equity investments, loans 
and advances to customers, Treasury Bills held to 

 maturity, amounts due to banks and other customers. 

ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (Pvt)Ltd 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.6.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities 
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are rec-

ognised in the statement of financial position when 
ZAMCO becomes a party to the contractual provi-
sions of the instrument.  Management determines 
the appropriate classification at initial recognition 
of the financial instrument. 

  
3.6.2 Financial assets 
 Financial assets are classified into the follow-

ing categories: financial assets as ‘at fair value 
through profit or loss’ (FVTPL), ‘held to maturity 
investments’, ‘available for sale’ (AFS) financial 
assets and ‘loans and receivables’.  The classifi-
cation depends on the nature and purpose of the 
financial asset and it is determined at the time of 
initial recognition. 

 
 ZAMCO’s main financial assets are debtors and 

other receivables, loans and advances to custom-
ers and investments.

3.6.3 Receivables, loans and advances 
 Receivables, loans and advances that are not 

quoted on an active market are classified as loans 
and advances. Loans and advances are classified 
as held to maturity and they are measured at am-
ortised cost less any impairment losses. 

3.6.4 Available for sale (AFS) financial assets
 AFS financial assets include equity investments 

and debt securities. Equity investments classified 
as AFS are those neither classified as held for trad-
ing nor designated at fair value through profit or 
loss. Debt securities in this category are those that 
are intended to be held for an indefinite period of 
time and that may be sold in response to needs for 
liquidity or in response to changes in market con-
ditions.

 After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are 
subsequently measured at fair value with unreal-
ised gains or losses recognised in OCI and posted 
in the mark to market reserve until the investment 

is derecognised, at which time profit or loss is rec-
ognised in other operating income. When the in-
vestment is determined to be impaired, the cumu-
lative loss is reclassified from the mark to market 
reserve to the statement of profit or loss as impair-
ment loss. Dividend received whilst holding AFS 
financial assets is reported as dividend income.

3.6.5  Held to maturity investments 
 Non derivative financial assets with fixed or de-

terminable payments and fixed maturities are 
classified as held to maturity when ZAMCO has 
the positive intention and ability to hold them to 
maturity. After initial measurement, held to matu-
rity investments are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate method, less, im-
pairment. The effective interest rate amortisation 
is included as finance income in the statement of 
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as 
finance costs. ZAMCO’s investments in treasury 
bills and other deposits have been classified as 
held to maturity.

3.6.6 Financial liabilities 
 Financial liabilities and equity instruments are 

classified according to the substance of the con-
tractual arrangements entered into. Financial lia-
bilities are recognised when ZAMCO becomes par-
ty to the contractual provisions of the instrument.  
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair 
value, generally being their issue proceeds net of 
transaction costs incurred.  

 
 The best evidence of fair value on initial recognition 

is the transaction price, unless the fair value is ev-
idenced by comparison with other observable cur-
rent market transactions in the same instrument 
or based on discounted cash flow models and op-
tion-pricing valuation techniques whose variables 
include only data from observable markets. 

 ZAMCO’s main financial liabilities include loans 
and borrowings. 
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 Subsequent measurement.
 The measurement of financial liabilities depends 

on their classification as described below

3.6.6.1 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recogni-
tion as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial 
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they 
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the 
near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for 
trading are recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss.

 Financial liabilities designated upon initial 
 recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 

designated at the initial date of recognition, and 
only if the criteria in IAS 39 is met. ZAMCO has 
not designated any financial liability as fair value 
through profit or loss.

3.6.6.2 Loans and Borrowings
 This is the category most relevant to ZAMCO. 
 After initial measurement, interest bearing loans 

and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest (EIR) 
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit 
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well 
as through the effective interest rate amortisation 
process.

 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortisation is included as interest expense in the 
statement of profit or loss.

 This category generally applies to interest bearing 
loans and borrowings.

3.6.7  Offsetting financial instruments 
 ZAMCO offsets financial assets and financial 
 liabilities and reports the net balance in the 

 statement of financial position where there is a 
legally enforceable right to set off and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the 
financial assets and settle the financial liability 

 simultaneously and the maturity date for the 
 financial assets and liabilities are the same 

and the financial assets and liabilities 
are denominated in the same currency. 

  
3.6.8  Impairment of financial assets 
 At each reporting date, ZAMCO assesses whether 

there is objective evidence that a financial asset or 
a group of financial assets is impaired.  

 ZAMCO considers objective evidence of 
 impairment as:
 
(i) Insolvency/financial difficulties on the part of a 

debtor. 
(ii) Delinquency by counterparty. 
(i) Breach of loan covenants or conditions.
(ii) Deterioration of borrowers competitive position. 
(iii) Deterioration in the value of collateral.
(iv) Renegotiation of loans to be on terms that ZAM-

CO would not otherwise consider. A financial asset 
or group of financial assets is impaired if objective 
evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred 
after the initial recognition of the asset and that 
loss event had a negative effect on the estimated 
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of 
financial assets that can be estimated reliably.

 ZAMCO first assesses whether there is objective 
evidence of impairment individually for financial 
assets that are individually significant, and indi-
vidually or collectively for financial assets that are 
not individually significant. Loans and advances 
are analysed on a case by case basis taking into 
account breaches of key loan conditions in accor-
dance with Banking Regulations SI 205 of 2000. 
Impairment allowances on individually assessed 
accounts are determined by an evaluation of the 
impairment at reporting date on a case by case 
basis, and are applied to all significant accounts. 
The assessment normally encompasses collateral 
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held and the anticipated receipts for that account.

 Increases in loan impairments and any subsequent 
reversals thereof, or recoveries of amounts previ-
ously impaired, are reflected in profit or loss. Pre-
viously impaired advances are written off once all 
reasonable attempts at collection have been made 
and there is no realistic prospect of recovering out-
standing amounts. Any subsequent reductions in 
amounts previously impaired are reversed by ad-
justing the allowance account with the amount of 
the reversal recognised as a reduction in impair-
ment for credit losses in profit or loss. Subsequent 
recoveries of previously written off advances are 
recognised in profit or loss. 

3.7 Derecognition of financial assets and financial 
 liabilities 
 ZAMCO derecognises a financial asset when it los-

es control over the contractual rights that comprise 
the financial assets and transfers substantially all 
the risks and benefits associated with the finan-
cial asset. This arises when the rights are either 

 realised, or they expire or are surrendered.
 ZAMCO derecognises a financial liability when the 

obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expired. 

  
 On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference 

between the carrying amount of the asset (or the 
carrying amount of the portion of the asset to be 
transferred), and the sum of (i) the consideration 
received (including any new asset obtained less 
any new liability assumed, and (ii) any cumulative 
gain that had been recorded in other comprehen-
sive income, is recognised in profit or loss. 

  
3.8 Investments in subsidiaries and joint 
 ventures. 
 A subsidiary is an investment in an entity 

wherein ZAMCO controls the investee. ZAMCO 
 controls an investee when it has power to govern the 
 financial and operating policies, is exposed to 

 variable returns from its involvement with the 
 investee and has ability to use its power to affect 

the amount of the investee’s returns. 
  
 A joint venture is a contractual arrangement 
 entered into by ZAMCO and other parties to share 

control of an economic activity. The strategic 
 financial and operating decisions relating to the 

economic activity require the consent of ZAMCO 
and other parties. 

  
 Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures 

are stated at deemed cost. Subsequent to initial 
 recognition, the investments in subsidiaries or joint 

ventures are carried at cost less any accumulated 
impairment. 

3.9 Provisions 
 Provisions are recognised when ZAMCO has 

a present legal or constructive obligation as a 
 result of past events, for which it is probable that an 
 outflow of economic benefits will be required to 

settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation. 

3.10  Operating leases 
 ZAMCO has entered into commercial property 

leases on its investment property portfolio. ZAM-
CO has determined, based on an evaluation of the 
terms and conditions of the arrangements, such 
as the lease term not constituting a substantial 
portion of the economic life of the commercial 
property, that it retains all the significant risks and 
rewards of ownership of these properties and ac-
counts for the contracts as operating leases. Rent-
al income and expenditure under operating leases 
is accounted for through profit or loss on a straight 
line basis, over the period of the lease.

3.11 Fair value measurement
 ZAMCO measures non-financial assets, such as 

investment properties, at fair value at each 
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 balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction be-
tween market participants at the measurement 
date. The fair value measurement is based on 
the presumption that the transaction to sell the 
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability.

 The principal or the most advantageous market 
must be accessible by ZAMCO. The fair value of an 
asset or a liability is measured using the assump-
tions that market participants would use when

 pricing the asset or liability, assuming that mar-
ket participants act in their economic best inter-
est. ZAMCO uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data is available to measure fair value, 
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is 
measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, de-
scribed as follows, based on the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement as 
a whole:

•  Level 1. Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in ac-
tive markets for identical assets or liabilities.

•  Level 2. Valuation techniques for which the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value mea-
surement is directly or indirectly observable.

•  Level 3. Valuation techniques for which the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value mea-
surement is unobservable.

 For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the 
financial statements on a recurring basis, ZAMCO 

determines whether transfers have occurred be-
tween Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing cat-
egorisation (based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

3.12 STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS IN ISSUE 
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 At the date of authorisation of these financial 
statements the following standards, amendments

 to existing standards and interpretations were in 
issue, but not yet effective up to the date of issu-
ance of ZAMCO’s financial statements:

 IFRS	9	“Financial	Instruments”	
 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 

1January 2018, with early application permitted), 
issued on 24 July 2014 is the IASB’s replacement 
of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement. IFRS 9 includes requirements 
for recognition and measurement, impairment, 
derecognition and general hedge accounting.

 Classification and Measurement
 IFRS 9 introduces new approach for the classifi-

cation of financial assets, which is driven by cash 
flow characteristics and the business model in 
which an asset is held. This single, principle-based 
approach replaces existing rule-based require-
ments under IAS 39. The new model also results 
in a single impairment model being applied to all 
financial instruments.

 Impairment 
 IFRS 9 has introduced a new, expected-loss 
 impairment model that will require more timely 

recognition of expected credit losses. Specifically, 
the new Standard requires entities to account for 
expected credit losses from when financial instru-
ments are first recognised and to recognise full 
lifetime expected losses on a more timely basis.
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 Hedge accounting
 IFRS 9 introduces a substantially-reformed 
 model for hedge accounting, with enhanced 
 disclosures about risk management activity. The 

new model represents a significant overhaul of hedge 
 accounting that aligns the accounting treatment 

with risk management activities.

 Own credit
 IFRS 9 removes the volatility in profit or loss 

that was caused by changes in the credit risk of 
 liabilities elected to be measured at fair value. This 

change in accounting means that gains caused by 
the deterioration of an entity’s own credit risk on 
such liabilities are no longer recognised in profit or 
loss. ZAMCO does not expect the revised standard 
to have material financial impact in future financial 
statements.

 IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2017), published by IASB on 28 May 2014.

 IFRS 15 specifies how and when an IFRS reporter 
will recognise revenue as well as requiring such en-
tities to provide users of financial statements with 
more informative, relevant disclosures. The stan-
dard supersedes IAS 18 “Revenue”, IAS 11 “Con-
struction Contracts” and a number of revenue-re-
lated interpretations. Application of the standard 
is mandatory for all IFRS reporters and it applies 
to nearly all contracts with customers: the main 
exceptions are leases, financial instruments and 
insurance contracts. The core principle of the new 
Standard is for companies to recognise revenue to 
depict the transfer of goods or services to custom-
ers in amounts that reflect the consideration (that 
is, payment) to which the company expects to be 
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 
The new Standard will also result in enhanced 
disclosures about revenue, provide guidance for 
transactions that were not previously addressed 
comprehensively (for example, service revenue 
and contract modifications) and improve guidance 
for multiple-element arrangements. ZAMCO does 

not expect the standard to have material financial 
impact in future financial statements.

 IFRS 16 Leases
 The IASB issued the new standard for account-

ing for leases - IFRS 16 Leases in January 2016. 
The new standard does not significantly change 
the accounting for leases for lessors. However, it 
does require lessees to recognise most leases on 
their balance sheets as lease liabilities, with the 
corresponding right-of-use assets. Lessees must 
apply a single model for all recognised leases, but 
will have the option not to recognise ‘short-term’ 
leases and leases of ‘low-value’ assets. Generally, 
the profit or loss recognition pattern for recognised 
leases will be similar to today’s finance lease ac-
counting, with interest and depreciation expense 
recognised separately in the statement of profit or 
loss.

 IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is

 permitted provided the new revenue standard, IFRS 
15, is applied on the same date. Lessees must

 adopt IFRS 16 using either a full retrospective or a 
modified retrospective approach. ZAMCO does not 
anticipate early adopting IFRS 16 and is currently 
evaluating its impact.

 Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes
 In January 2016, through issuing amendments to 

IAS 12, the IASB clarified the accounting treatment 
of deferred tax assets of debt instruments mea-
sured at fair value for accounting, but measured at 
cost for tax purposes. The amendment is effective 
from 1 January 2017. These amendments are not 
expected to have an impact on ZAMCO’s results 
as ZAMCO is exempt from paying income taxes

 Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
 In January 2016, the IASB issued amendments 

to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows with the inten-
tion to improve disclosures of financing activities 
and help users to better understand the reporting 

 entities’ liquidity positions. Under the new 
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 requirements, entities will need to disclose changes in their financial liabilities as a result of financing activities 
such as changes from cash flows and non-cash items (e.g., gains and losses due to foreign currency move-
ments). The amendment is effective from 1 January 2017. ZAMCO is

  currently evaluating the impact.

4 CRITICAL JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION IN APPLYING ZAMCO’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 In the process of applying ZAMCO’s accounting policies, the Directors have made the following judgments and 

estimations that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 
  
4.1 Property and equipment values, useful lives, residual values and depreciation rates 
 ZAMCO’s property and equipment are depreciated using depreciation rates, useful lives and residual values 
 estimated by the Directors. 

4.2 Going concern
 The entity’s management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied 

that the entity has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is 
not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the entity’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

4.3  Fair value of financial instruments
 Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the statement of financial position 

cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include 
the use of mathematical models. The inputs to these models are derived from observable market data where 
possible, but where observable market data are not available, judgment is required to establish fair values. The 
judgments include considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as discount rates, prepayment rates, time to 
maturity and default rate assumptions for debt securities

4.4 Impairment of loans and advances 
 In assessing impairment, ZAMCO considers the underlying security of a transaction and the resolution method 

earmarked for that particular loan. At each reporting date, ZAMCO reviews the carrying amount of its loans and 
advances against estimations of the recoverable amount.

5 INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

5.1  Interest and Fee income comprises:                     2016    2015
              US$           US$
 Interest income                        30,948,667                       4,704,480
 Coupon Income                 5,309,361           -
 Facility fees                     272,331             487,541
  Management fees                  -     9,571
 Other Income        10,452           -
                                                                                                                 ___________________         __________________
                                                                                                       36,540,811                       5,201,592
                              ___________________         __________________  
Interest Income is interest earned on Loans Acquired and restructured, with rates ranging between 5-10%. Facility 
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fees are charged at 1% of restructured loan on commencement of facility. Management fees are charged where 
ZAMCO acts as an agent, at 0.5% of transacted amount. Income increased during the period because of an increase 
in loans restructured as well as the charges being for a full year.

5.2  Interest and Fee expense comprises:    
      
Interest expense on Treasury bills  issued                  19,371,514                       2,584,966
Interest expense on PTA facility                                                             3,750,371                        1,678,531
Commission paid        20,944   -      
Bank charges                                                                               2,146                    690
                  ___________________        __________________
                                                                                                      23,144,974          4,264,187
                  ___________________      ___________________

Interest expense consists mainly of interest on Treasury Bills issued for loan acquisitions, which carry a coupon of 
5%p.a. payable semi-annually as well as Interest charged on the PTA distressed banks facility which has an interest 
rate of 8.25%p.a. also payable semi-annually. An increase in acquisition of loans gave rise to more Treasury bills 
being issued, resulting in higher interest expense charges.

           2016   2015
                 US$          US$

5.3 Operating expenses                                                                                  757,582            458,617   
 Operating expenses include:  
 Auditors’ remuneration                  38,036                            30,188
 Depreciation of property and equipment                                           29,614                            14,222
 Utility bills and telecommunication                 14,713                        7,211
 Legal fees             -              18,000
 Rent & rates                   20,400              24,040
 Other expenses                 133,704              52,218
 Employee benefits                 423,915            163,257
 -Salaries and allowances                389,252             145,050
 - Pension & Medical Aid contributions                 21,319                9,679
 -Leave pay provision                  13,344                8,528
 -Directors Fees                   97,200                         149,000
 
6  IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

 An impairment assessment was carried out as at reporting date, on all the outstanding loans, advances and 
other assets. $10,144,874 worth of assets were found to be impaired and were provided for in the current years’ 
financial statements. 
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                  2016                        2015
                       US$                              US$
7 CASH AND BANK BALANCES         
 Short Term Investments             6,456,600           -
 Bank Balances                                                                       369,808                      1,332,564
 Cash at hand                                                                   107     296
         ______________                  ______________
                                                                                                    6,826,515                      1,332,860
         ______________                  ______________

       Cash and Bank Balances comprises cash on hand, demand
       deposits with local banks and short term investments
                      2016                        2015
                      US$                                   US$
8 RECEIVABLES         
 Other Receivables                                                                              31,389                1,936
         ______________                  ______________
                        31,389                1,936
         ______________                  ______________
 Other receivables include staff loans and prepayments 
 for operating expenses
                 2016                                  2015
                   US$                      US$
9	 LOANS	AND	ADVANCES	         
 Loans and advances                                                                    709,400,533     272,372,437
 Impairment of financial assets        (10,144,874)             -
          ______________                  ______________
                                                                                                                    699,255,659                   272,372,437
          ______________                  ______________
 
 During the year, there were significant acquisitions of NPLs that were restructured and currently form part of the 

ZAMCO income earning asset base.

 These balances do not correspond to the 2015 financial statements. They represent reclassifications made in 
the current year. In the audited 2015 financial statements, Loans and Advances had a total of US$312,464,998 
which included preference shares of US$40,092,561 which have been reclassified in the current year
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                  2016                                  2015
                    US$                           US$
10 PREFERENCE SHARES HELD         
 Preference Shares held                                                                   40,092,561        40,092,561
                       ______________                   ______________
                                                                                                                             40,092,561                      40,092,561
           ______________                   ______________
 
 The preference shares are held in entities whose debts, owing to ZAMCO, were converted on restructuring. The 

2015 figure represents a current year reclassification as stated in Note 9.
 
                          2016                                   2015
                   US$                                     US$
11 FINANCIAL SECURITIES         
 Treasury Bills                                                                                 38,283,003                      38,283,003
                       ______________                   ______________
                                                                                                                             38,283,003        38,283,003
             ______________                   ______________

 The Treasury Bills are Government Treasury Bills pledged as security by the Government on the Infrastructure 
Development Bank of Zimbabwe facility.
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Net Book Value:

At 01 January 2015         11,028      -     -       10,346    -      21,374
    ___________  ___________ ___________ ___________ ___________         __________
At	31	December	2015	 								24,907	 											4,489	 								10,815	 							25,215	 	 		-	 					65,427
    ___________  ___________ ___________ __________ ___________         __________
At	31	December	2016	 								28,159	 										3,166	 							33,724	 						23,768	 						77,272	 		166,088
    ___________  ___________ ___________ __________ ___________         __________

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
  
	 	 	 				Computer	 			Computer	 				Furniture	 									Office	 								Motor	
       Hardware     Software    & Fittings  Equipment     Vehicles        Total
                US$             US$             US$             US$             US$          US$
COST:
At 01 January 2015          11,508      -      -         10,828    -      22,336
Additions           19,018            5,295         12,017         21,945    -      58,275
Disposals                      -      -      -     -    -  -
     ___________  ___________ ____________        ___________           ___________         __________ 
At	31	December	2015	 								30,526	 											5,295	 								12,017	 							32,773	 	 		-	 					80,611
     ___________  ___________ ____________ ___________ ___________         __________
Additions            12,881      -         25,259           7,488        85,660   131,288
Disposals           (1,280)      -     -    -    -      (1,280)
     ___________    __________  ___________ ___________ ___________         __________
At	31	December	2016	 								42,127	 											5,295	 								37,276	 								40,261	 							85,660	 		210,619
    ___________    __________  ___________ __________ ___________ _________

DEPRECIATION:

At	01	January	2015	 														480	 	 				-	 	 				-	 													482	 	 		-	 										962
Disposals                      -               -      -     -       -  -
Depreciation charge            5,139               806           1,202           7,076     -      14,222
for the year   ___________  ___________ ____________ ___________ ___________         __________

At	31	December	2015	 											5,619	 														806	 										1,202	 										7,558	 	 		-	 					15,184
    ___________  ___________ ____________   __________ ___________         __________
Disposals              (267)      -     -     -    -         (267)
Depreciation charge            8,616            1,324            2,351           8,936          8,388      29,614
for the year   ___________  ___________ ___________   __________ ___________        ___________
At	31	December	2016	 									13,968	 											2,129	 										3,552																	16,494	 									8,388	 					44,531
    ___________  ___________ ___________   __________ ___________         __________
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         2016                        2015
                           US$                           US$
13 SHARE CAPITAL 

 Authorised share capital 200 000 ordinary shares at $0.01               2,000                                    2,000
  
 Issued Share Capital
 100,000 Ordinary Shares @ $0.01     1,000    1,000
 Share premium                                                                                     286,521                               286,521
                       ________________              ________________
                                                     287,521                          287,521                                                                                 
                                         ________________              ________________
 ZAMCO’s issued share capital is held by the 
  Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe.

14 RETAINED EARNINGS
 Opening balance                415,274                           (63,514)
 Retained profit for period                                                                   2,493,381                           478,788
                       ________________              ________________
 Balance	at	period	end	 	 	 	 	 						2,908,655	 																										415,274
                       ________________              ________________
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15 LOANS AND BORROWINGS

NAME          RATE TENURE          SECURITY
                   PLEDGED                   2016                       2015
                              US$                         US$
     
PTA Bank            8.25  8 Years                -           43,239,153          45,752,427
Infrastructure Development               -              -                -           38,283,003          38,283,003
Bank of Zimbabwe 
Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe           5%   8 Years  -                 -         14,875,770
(Ex-Afreximbank)
CBZ Loan Facility            8%    8years               -         217,991,989                 -
Other Loans & Dues        0-5%              -                -           29,172,606                 -
                                        _____________       ____________
TOTAL																																																																																														 																									328,686,751								98,911,200
                    _____________       ____________  

 
Other loans and dues include Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe intercompany loans and interest accrued on the Treasury 
bills in issue. 

16 TREASURY BILLS IN ISSUE
                                                                     449,748,736        250,123,365
                                                                                                                                              _____________       _____________
 
 These are US Dollar denominated Government of Zimbabwe Treasury Bills issued on behalf of ZAMCO for the 

acquisition of non-performing loans and payments made by the RBZ to foreign creditors for and on behalf of 
ZAMCO with respect to interest due. The Treasury Bills attract a coupon of 5%p.a payable semi-annually. The 
increase in treasury bills resulted from more acquisitions of NPLs being concluded.

17 DEFERRED INCOME
                                                                                          2,611,876            2,028,120 
                                                                                                                                  _____________       _____________
      
 Refers to facility fees charged by ZAMCO on restructuring a loan. In accordance with IAS 39, the deferred 
 income is amortised over the lifespan of the facility using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

                                                                                                                    2016                             2015
            US$                              US$
18 PAYABLES 
 Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe Intercompany Balances                 258,503         209,265
 Other Payables              153,172         173,479
                   ________________          ________________
 Balance for the year              411,675         382,744
                                 ________________          ________________
 
 Intercompany balance relates to transactions done by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe on behalf of ZAMCO, 

whilst other payables include legal fees accrued, Audit fees provision and provisions for leave pay   
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                          2016                                2015
                            US$                    US$
18.1 LEAVE PAY PROVISION 

 Opening balance 1 January                                     8,528            -
 Gross Provisions for the year                    13,344                                8,528
 Paid out during the year                    (2,090)            -
                           ______________                   ______________
 Closing	balance	31	December	 	 	 	 	 													19,782	 	 															8,528
                           ______________                   ______________
  
18.2  AUDIT FEES ACCRUED 

 Opening balance 1 January                     30,188            -
 Charge for the year                      38,036                              30,188
 Paid during the year                   (30,188)   -
                                         ______________                   ______________
 Closing balance 31 December                  38,036                  30,188
                                                                                                                                 ______________                    ______________

19	 CONTINGENT	LIABILITIES,	COMMITMENTS	AND	OTHER	CONTINGENCIES
 
 There were no contingent liabilities at year end.

                          2016                               2015
20 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS                        US$                    US$
 
 Authorised and contracted:                                                                                   -                                           -
                                           ______________                    ______________
        Total                  -                                        -
               ______________                    _____________ 

21 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

21.1    National Social Security Authority (NSSA) scheme
 The Employees are also members of a state-managed retirement benefit plan, NSSA, and the contributions to 

the scheme are made in terms of the National Social Security Authority Act (Chapter 17:04). During the year 
ZAMCO contributed US$4,348 towards this plan and the cost is included in the staff costs.

 
21.2 Recognition of contributions
 ZAMCO’s obligation with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specific contributions. The 
 contributions to the pension funds are recognized as an expense when they fall due.

                           2016                               2015
                            US$                   US$
21.3 Contributions recognized as an expense during the year
 National Social Security Authority Scheme                    4,348                  1,998
              ______________                    ______________
                          4,348                  1,998
              ______________                    ______________ 
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22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
 
 ZAMCO has various policies and procedures to manage its risk. Below is a table on classification of ZAMCO’s 

financial assets on certain aspects of its risk management specific to its financial instruments. 

 
22.1 Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities (2016)

                      Financial                                    
                   Held to      instruments          Loans and           Bank and
                maturity     at amortised           receivable                    cash
         investments      Cost         Total

                      US$       US$       US$       US$       US$
     
Financial Assets  
Loans and advances                          -             -       699,255,659             -       699,255,659
Preference shares held         40,092,561             -              -             -          40,092,561
Receivables                           -             -   31,389             -                 31,389
Financial Securities          38,283,003                     -                           -             -         38,283,003
Cash and bank balances                          -             -             -            6,826,515           6,826,515
           ___________        ____________       _____________     _____________       ______________
Total	 	 	 	 							78,375,564	 								 	 					699,287,048											6,826,515								784,489,127
           ___________        ____________     ______________     _____________       ______________
Financial Liabilities
Treasury bills in issue                          -       449,748,736             -            -       449,748,736
Long term loans & borrowings              -       299,514,145             -            -       299,514,145
Other loans and dues                          -         29,172,606             -            -         29,172,606
Payables                           -              411,675             -            -              411,675
           ___________       ____________     ______________     ______________     ______________
Total                                  -      778,847,162                          -            -      778,847,162
                                                  ___________       ____________     ______________     ______________     ______________
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22.1 Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities (2015)
      
         Financial                                 
            Held to        instruments     Loans and    Bank and 
        maturity      at amortised        receivables            Cash
                                                                                      investments                              Total
                US$              US$              US$              US$              US$
       
Financial Assets  
Loans and advances                    -      -        272,372,437      -        272,372,437
Preference shares held  40,092,561                    -          -         -   40,092,561
Receivables                     -      -            1,936      -            1,936
Financial Securities  38,283,003                           -      -        -     38,283,003
Cash and bank balances                    -      -      -    1,332,860    1,332,860
                 ____________      _____________        _____________     ______________      _____________
Total	 	 	 78,375,564	 																		-								272,374,373	 			1,332,860							352,082,797
                 ____________      _____________        _____________     ______________      _____________
Financial Liabilities
Treasury bills in issue                    -        246,112,295      -      -        246,112,295
Long term loans & borrowings                    -  98,911,200      -      -  98,911,200
Other loans                     -    4,011,070      -        -    4,011,070
Payables                     -      -               382,744       -       -              
382,744
                                             ____________      ______________     ______________    ______________     _____________ 
Total	 	 	 																		-							349,417,309	 	 				-	 		 				-							349,417,309
                 ____________      ______________     ______________    ______________     _____________

22.2 Market price risk 
 Market price risk is the risk of loss resulting from changes in market conditions and prices. Market price risk 
 includes interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk. In its operations, ZAMCO is obliged to accept 
 certain market-related risks which would not be fully compatible with pure commercial practice. ZAMCO 
 nevertheless manages its market risks responsibly, utilising modern technology and appropriate organisation-

al structures and procedures. Exposures and limits are measured continuously and strategies are routinely 
 reviewed by management 

22.3 Interest rate risk 
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market interest rates. This is managed at both the board and management level through regular 
policy and benchmarks which relates to interest rate risk management. The majority of ZAMCO’s loans and 

 advances facilities are at concessionary rates.

 ZAMCO’s senior management oversees the management of these risks and they are supported by a committee 
that advises on such risks and the appropriate risk governance framework for ZAMCO. The committee provides 
assurance that ZAMCO’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that 
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financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with ZAMCO’s policies and risk objectives.

Listed below are ZAMCO’s interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities:

                                                                                                                              2016                                 2015
Financial assets                      US$                      US$
Loans and advances      699,255,659   272,372,437
Preference shares held        40,092,561      40,092,561
Financial Securities                                                              38,283,003     38,283,003
                                                       ___________________                          __________________
Total                                                                                                      777,631,223   350,748,001
              ___________________                    __________________

Financial Liabilities
Loans and borrowings           299,514,145     98,911,200
Treasury bills in issue         449,748,736   246,112,295
Other Loans and dues          29,172,606       4,011,070
                       ___________________       __________________
Total		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 778,435,487	 	 														349,034,565
                         ___________________       __________________
 
22.4  Foreign currency risk
 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of 

changes in exchange rates. ZAMCO’s assets and liabilities are held in US$ (ZAMCO’s functional currency) hence. 
The corporation was not exposed to currency risk at year end.

22.5 Credit risk 
 Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the inability or unwillingness of a counterparty to meet its contractual 
 obligations. Credit risk arises from such activities of ZAMCO as advances to clients and deposits made with 

other institutions and the settlement of financial market transactions. 

 Credit mitigation is employed by ZAMCO through taking collateral mostly in the form of immovable property 
and other guarantees. ZAMCO is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities, financing activities including 
deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

 Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by ZAMCO’s Investment and Asset 
Management department in accordance with ZAMCO’s policy.

 Concentration of credit risk
 ZAMCO deals with a variety of clients and its loans and advances are structured and spread among them. In 

addition, ZAMCO has procedures and policies in place to limit the amount of credit exposure to any counterparty. 
ZAMCO reviews, on a regular basis, the performance of counterparties and takes action accordingly to ensure 
that exposure limits are not exceeded. ZAMCO was not exposed to any concentration risk as at year end.

ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (Pvt)Ltd 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2016



ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (PRIVATE)LIMITED

2016 Annual Report62

 Credit risk measurement
 ZAMCO assesses the probability of default of financial institutions or counterparty using internal rating scale 

tailored to the various categories of counterparties. The rating scale has been developed internally and combines 
data analysis with credit officer judgment and is validated, where appropriate, by comparison with externally 
available information. Clients of ZAMCO are segmented into seven rating classes. ZAMCO’s rating scale, which is 
shown below, reflects the range of default probabilities defined for each rating class. This means that, in principle, 
exposures migrate between classes as the assessment of their probability of default changes. The rating scale is 
kept under review and upgraded as necessary. ZAMCO regularly validates the performance of the rating and their 
predictive power with regard to default events.

 Internal Ratings Scale

 Rating Grade      Description of the rating

 1        Low risk
 2        Satisfactory risk
 3        Fair risk
 4       Watch list
 5        Sub-Standard risk
 6        Doubtful and bad
        Loss
 
      
                                                           Neither Past              Past due            Past due and     Total
           Due/nor impaired       not impaired                    impaired        
        
Credit risk Analysis 2016            US$                    US$                            US$                             US$
  
Cash and bank balances    6,826,515            -                    -            6,826,515
Receivables         31,389            -                    -                 31,389
Loans and advances to clients           657,514,303        41,741,356                      -       699,255,659
Preference shares held               40,092,561                          -                                  -          40,092,561
                                       ______________     _____________         _________________        ________________
Total non-derivative assets           704,464,768        41,741,356                       -       746,206,124 
              ______________     _____________         _________________        _________________
Credit risk Analysis 2015

Cash and bank balances   1,332,860             -                    -            1,332,860 
Receivables            1,936            -                    -      1,936
Loans and advances to clients               261,827,141        10,545,296                       -        272,372,437
Preference shares held               40,092,561            -                    -          40,092,561
                                                                   ______________ ________________         ________________        _________________
Total	non-derivative	assets	 										303,254,498	 							10,545,296	 				 																		-	 						313,799,794
                                       ______________ ________________         ________________        _________________

ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (Pvt)Ltd 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2016



ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (PRIVATE) LIMITED

2016 Annual Report 63

ZIMBABWE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (Pvt)Ltd 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2016

22.6     Credit risk exposure

 The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit for the components of the statement of financial 
 position.

                      2016                       2015
                        US$                   US$
 Cash and bank balances                6,826,515                          1,332,860                
 Receivables                                       31,389                   1,936
 Loans and advances           699,255,659       272,372,437
 Preference shares held             40,092,561         40,092,561
 Financial Securities             38,283,003            38,283,003
          ___________________ __________________
 Total																																																																																										 	 				784,489,127	 	 				352,082,797
          ___________________ __________________
 Contingent liabilities                                  -           -
 Commitments                     -                               -
          ___________________ __________________
 Total                                                                                                          -                     -
          ___________________ __________________

 ZAMCO held collateral worth US$524 million (2015 – US$42.6 million) on advances to clients. The collateral held 
by ZAMCO is in the form of real estate.

22.7 Liquidity risk 

 Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity may not be able to accommodate decreases in liabilities or to fund 
 increases in assets in full at the time that a commitment or transaction is due for settlement. Due to the multi-
 currency regime ZAMCO faces liquidity risk on domestic and foreign assets as it does not have capacity to 
 create local currency when required. ZAMCO faces liquidity risk in respect of foreign assets and liabilities and 

its risk is further compounded by the fact that ZAMCO is undercapitalized. Due to these challenges, it has been 
 difficult for ZAMCO to settle its liabilities as they fall due. However, the Government, through the Ministry of 

Finance, has pledged continued support to ZAMCO. The Government has started the process of taking over 
ZAMCO’s liabilities.

 The table below analyses ZAMCO’s financial assets and financial liabilities into relevant maturity groups and the 
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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22.7.1 Maturity Analysis (2016) 
  
                       On demand        Due between      Due between           Due between              Due After               Total
        0-3 months        3-12 months                 1-5 years                  5 years       carrying
                                                     cost      amount
                                    US$   US$                 US$                 US$                US$            US$
       
Non-derivative liabilities  
Loans and borrowings  -                         618,446        6,127,409      25,984,926  295,955,970       328,686,751
Treasury Bills in issue  -                      9,277,286           500,000         2,368,271  437,603,179       449,748,736
Payables             411,675  -  -  -  -      411,675
  
                 _______________    ________________   _________________   _________________   ________________   ______________
Total	non-derivative	 										411,675	 							9,895,732	 							6,627,409	 					28,353,197	 	733,559,149						778,847,161
liabilities                _______________    ________________   _________________   _________________   ________________   ______________

Assets held for managing liquidity risk

Cash and bank balances         6,826,515  -  -  -  -  6,826,515
Financial Securities  -  -  -  -    38,283,003         38,283,003
Loans and receivables      41,741,356        6,896,727     27,135,864   223,168,462  400,313,250       699,255,659
Preference shares held  -  -  -  -     40,092,561        40,092,561
                 _______________    ________________     ________________   _________________   ________________   ______________
Total	assets	held	for	 						48,567,871	 							6,896,727	 				27,135,864	 	223,168,462	 	478,688,814						784,457,738
managing liquidity risk       _______________    ________________     ________________   _________________   ________________   ______________
Net exposure       48,156,196      (2,999,005)     20,508,455  194,815,265 (254,870,335)  5,610,577
                _______________     ________________     ________________   _________________   ________________   ______________

22.7.2 Maturity Analysis (2015)   
   
Non-derivative liabilities  
Loans & borrowings  -  -        4,667,477      33,603,244    60,640,479         98,911,200
Treasury Bills in issue         3,315,001  -      13,096,069  -                233,712,295       250,123,365
Payables                      382,744  -  -  -  -      382,744
                 _______________    ________________    ________________    ________________    _________________  _____________
Total	non-derivative		 							3,697,745	 	 -	 				17,763,546	 				33,603,244									294,352,774						349,417,309
liabilities                                _______________     ________________     ________________   _________________   ________________   ______________

Assets held for managing liquidity risk
Cash and bank balances            1,332,860  -  -  -  -  1,332,860
Financial Securities  -  -  -  -    38,283,003         38,283,003
Loans and receivables      10,545,296           728,850      22,334,582    131,157,093  107,606,616       272,372,437
Preference shares held  -  -  -  -     40,092,561        40,092,561
                 _______________    ________________     ________________   _________________   ________________   ______________
Total assets held for      11,878,156           728,850      22,334,582    131,157,093  185,982,180       352,080,861
managing liquidity risk      _______________    ________________     ________________   _________________   ________________   ______________
Net	exposure	 	 					8,180,411													728,850	 				4,571,036	 			7,553,849				(108,370,593)								2,663,552
               _______________    ________________     ________________   _________________   ________________   ______________
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22.7.3 Default and breaches disclosure
As at reporting date, ZAMCO was not in default for any of the loans and payables.
      
22.7.4  Secured and unsecured Loans and Advances (2016) 
      
                Security                    Unsecured                       Total carrying       
                    value                               value                                  Amount                       
                                     2016                                        2016                                     2016                                  

                     US$                                 US$                                  US$                        
Financial Assets 
Loans and advances to Clients    524,282,772                    174,972,887     699,255,659
Financial Securities               38,283,003                                                 -       38,283,003                     
Other receivables          -               31,389                                     31,389  
                                           _____________                           _____________                   _____________     
Total       562,565,775    175,004,276     737,570,051          

                                               _____________                           _____________                   _____________   
    
Secured and Unsecured Financial Liabilities
Loans and borrowings          -     328,686,751       328,686,751   
Treasury Bills in issue          -     449,748,736     449,748,736   
Payables                         -            411,675            411,675   
                                                    _____________                           _____________                   _____________  
Total           -    778,847,162    778,847,162
                    _____________                           _____________                   _____________ 

The security held on the financial assets is in the form of Government guarantees and real estate.

22.7.5 Secured and unsecured Loans and Advances(2015)      
               Security       Unsecured                Total carrying       
                value 2015                             value 2015                Amount 2015                       
      US$   US$                                  US$                        
Financial Assets 
Loans and advances to clients       42,613,960     229,758,477     272,372,437
Financial Securities        38,283,003          -       38,283,003               
Other receivables           -                  1,936                      1,936           
                             _____________                           _____________                   _____________ 
Total																																																																												80,896,963	 																			229,760,413	 	 			310,657,376                                        
      _____________                           _____________                   _____________ 

Secured and Unsecured Financial Liabilities
Loans & borrowings                          -                98,911,200        98,911,200  
Treasury Bills in issue                                         -         250,123,365            250,123,365   
Payables                                                                          -                  382,744                 382,744                          
                              _____________                           _____________                   _____________ 
Total	 	 													 	 	 	 						-	 	 			349,417,309	 	 			349,417,309
       _____________                           _____________                   _____________ 

The security tendered on the financial assets is in the form of Zimbabwe Treasury, movable and immovable property. ZAMCO has 
not surrendered any security on the loans that it owes.  
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23. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

 ZAMCO’s objectives when managing capital which is a broader concept than the equity on the face of financial 
position, are:

• To safeguard ZAMCO’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide 
• To maintain a strong capital position necessary for its term financial health, and to support the   development of 

its business.

ZAMCO is not subject to capital requirements by a regulatory body.

The table below summarises the composition of ZAMCO’s capital for the year ended 31 December 2016.

                  2016                2015
                    US$            US$
Share capital               1,000      1,000
Share premium                                                      286,521            286,521
Retained Earnings       2,908,655    415,274
                      ___________         ____________
Total																																																																																														 3,196,176	 	 702,795
                      ___________         ____________

The allocation of capital between specific business operations is largely driven by optimisation of the return achieved 
on the capital allocated. The Board of Directors sets the assets and liability management policies which determine the 
eventual asset allocation dependent on the strategic objectives of ZAMCO.

ZAMCO uses return on capital employed, synergies with other operations and activities, fit with the longer term 
strategic objectives of ZAMCO and availability of management and other resources in allocating its capital expenditure 
activities.

ZAMCO’s policies in respect of capital management and allocation are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors.

 24. RELATED PARTY INFORMATION 

ZAMCO is wholly owned by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe. ZAMCO did not have controlling interests any company as 
at 31 December 2016, or at any point during the year.         
 
24.1 Compensation of key management personnel of ZAMCO.

 As required by IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures, key management remuneration and non-Executive Directors’ 
fees are broken down as:

 Directors fees and short-term employee benefits*     152,083  176,442
                     ___________         ____________
                          152,083               176,442 
                     ___________         ____________ 

*The short term benefits comprise of directors’ emoluments and key management personnel allowances
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24.2     Balances with related parties
    
        Related Party                                        Relationship                                 2016                  2015 
                                         US$            US$
         
        Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe    Parent    22,592,463  2,020,157
 Government of Zimbabwe  Owner of Parent     1,946,319   -
          ___________  __________
          24,538,782  2,020,157
          ___________                    __________

 The movement during the year arose from payments made on behalf of ZAMCO by the Reserve Bank of 
 Zimbabwe and the Government of Zimbabwe

25. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 

 Comparative figures are based on the 2015 audited financial statements. 

26. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD  

 There were no events after reporting period.

27. GOING CONCERN 

 The Government through the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe (RBZ) has committed to the operations of ZAMCO by 
pledging to issue Treasury Bills (TBs) with a face value of US$500 million for the purchase of Non-Performing 
Loans. 

 ZAMCO is wholly owned by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe and remains core to the wellbeing of the financial 
services sector. The entity generates revenue from interest on purchased and restructured loan assets, facilitation 
and management fees. 

 ZAMCO recorded a Profit of US$2,493,381 (2015 Profit: US$478,788), for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 
as of that date, its total assets were US$784,655,214 (2015: US$352,148,223) whilst total liabilities amounted to 
US$781,459,038 (2015: US$351,445,429) as reflected in these financial statements. The financial statements are 
prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern.

 
 Accordingly, taking into account ZAMCO’s performance in the period under review, and future prospects 
 presented by the scope of ZAMCO’s mandate, there is reasonable expectation that ZAMCO has adequate 
 resources to continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future.
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